Mosquito Fire Protection District

Board of Directors Meeting
Thursday, June 26, 2025 — 6:00 PM
Mosquito FPD Station 75
8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557

AGENDA

Item

Presenter

1. Call to Order.
Topic/Date: MFPD Board Meeting June 26, 2025
Time: 6:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

If you have a disability and are requesting an accommodation pursuant to the Americans with
Disabilities Act, please contact district at 530-626-9017 or admin75@mfpd.us

L. Uggla

2. Roll Call & Quorum announced

L. Uggla

3. Pledge of Allegiance.

L. Uggla

4. Public Comment Public may address the board on any District related item
not included in this agenda.
We ask that your comments remain civil and respectful. Any lack of decorum
will result in the forfeiture of your time.
Please limit your comments to ho more than 3 minutes in duration.

5. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR The
Board may make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the agenda
including moving items to or from the Consent Calendar and adopt the agenda and
the Consent Calendar with one single vote. A Board member may request an item
be removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion and separate Board action.
At the appropriate time as called by the Board Chair, members of the public may
make a comment on matters on the Consent Calendar prior to Board action.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/|/82791850124?pwd=0J17WRfKKvma6gvZ0gilE9BhpKtCxE.1

Meeting 827 9185 0124
Meeting passcode 668735

L. Uggla

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 1 of 128



mailto:admin75@mfpd.us
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82791850124?pwd=0JI7WRfKKvma6gvZ0qilE9BhpKtCxE.1

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

5.1 Approval of Expenditures - Expenses 2025 May 9
Expenses 2025 May 23
Expenses 2025 Jun 10
Expenses 2025 Jun 11

5.2 Minutes: 2025 March 27 (Tabled from April)- 2 sets
Minutes: 2025 April 24
Minutes: 2025 May 12 Special Meeting
Minutes: 2025 Jun 13 Special Meeting

Closed Session: Legal Complaint (Gov. Code 54956.9(d).)
Chiefs’ Contract Review
Chiefs’ Performance Review Gov Code 54957(b)1
Chiefs’ Work Status
Discuss Board Legal Responsibilities

Report of Closed Session 7 PM

6. Issue ltems

6.1 Resolution 2025-01 Appropriation Limitations

6.2 Morton Property Status

6.3 Approve Preliminary Budget 25-26

6.4 Resolution for VFA 50-50

6.5 Resolution Response to outside District

6.6 Approval of EDFRA Report/Proposal additional $3000. payment

6.7 Policy 1200 and 1201

6.8 Review and approval of Annual Operating Agreements
a) Operating Agreement with CalFire
b) Operating Agreement with US Forest Service

6.9 Extrication training Vehicle

6.10 Discussion Vehicles

6.11 Fire Chief Hiring Committee

6.12 Policies update: Policies 204, 211, 614, 1013, 1027, 1051, 1054 & 1108.

6.13 Policy updates: Policy 103, 601, 609, 700 & 709
Policy 710,803, 804, 914, 1040 1048
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page@af“@ 1012 & 1040

L. Uggla

L. Uggla

L. Uggla

W. Buhnerkempe
W. Buhnerkempe
L. Uggla

L. Uggla

T. Williams

L. Uggla

T. Williams
L.Uggla
W. Buhnerkempe

W. Buhnerkempe




Policy 1052

7. Committee Reports

7.1 Finance Committee
7.2 District Auxiliary Mosquito

8. Director’'s Comments.

9. Adjourn.
Next Meeting: Thursday July 24, 2025

Dedicated te Cur Commurity

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 3 of 128




4:33 PM
06/02/25

May 9, 25

May 9, 25

Mosquito Fire Protection District
Bills for U.S. Bank El Dorado Co

Name Num Amount Terms Date May 9, 2025 Split Memo Name Address
1080 13077050 120.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 13077050 Streamline U.S. Bank
1080 91777026 120.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 91777026 Starlink U.S. Bank
1080 2190031 30.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 2190031 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1235069 124.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 1235069 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 93191055 804.40 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404700 - Utilities 93191055 PG&E U.S. Bank
1080 6156563 30.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 6156563 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 745056 5.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 745056 Microsoft security U.S. Bank
1080 41100853 -13.70 05/09/2025 404260 - Office Expense 41100853 Refund returned item U.S. Bank
1080 76466174 19.99 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 76466174 Adobe U.S. Bank
1080 91853550 5339.89 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404160 - Veh. Maint. Service Contract 91853550 Vehicle Maint U.S. Bank
1080 27526171 431 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404539 - Software License 27526171 Aplus U.S. Bank
1080 9779824 109.70 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404197 - Maint. Building Supplies 9779824 Station supplies U.S. Bank
1080 85416962 161.73 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404085 - Refuse Disposal 85416962 Garbage serv U.S. Bank
1080 10582139 25.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404606 - Fuel Purchases 10582139 Fuel U.S. Bank
1080 201102090 745.65 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404502 - Educational Materials 201102090 CPR Course videos r&r U.S. Bank
1080 59497525 25.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 59497525 Sinclair Paint U.S. Bank
1080 93715354 664.48 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 93715354 Prepo ST Food Reimb U.S. Bank
1080 25866730 1135.06 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 25866730 Towing U.S. Bank
1080 78895301 478.01 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 78895301 ST Prepo Food REimb U.S. Bank
1080 37085980 149.86 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 37085980 ST Prepo food Reimb U.S. Bank
1080 81177811 123.44 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 81177811 ST Prepo food Reimb U.S. Bank
1080 37387070 144.10 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 37387070 ST Prepo food Reimb U.S. Bank
1080 1107077 250.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 1107077 Fireline EMT VS r&r U.S. Bank
1080 1163078 250.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 1163078 FirelineEMT AS r&r U.S. Bank
1080 17205210 21.25 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 17205210 insurance U.S. Bank
1080 17205251 21.25 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 17205251 protection U.S. Bank
1080 13599711 55.14 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 13599711 sling scheduler U.S. Bank
1080 30149077 250.00 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 30149077 FirelineEMT TC ré&r U.S. Bank
1080 12440224 78.66 MFPD05092025 05/09/2025 404260 - Office Expense 12440224 CC fee U.S. Bank

11272.22

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 4 of 128

Page 1 of 1



5:44 PM
06/05/25

May 23, 25

May 23, 25

Mosquito Fire Protection District
Bills for U.S. Bank El Dorado Co

Name Num Amount Terms Date May 23, ZQaﬁ Memo Name Address
1080 65561027 120.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 65561027 Starlink U.S. Bank
1080 13869060 30.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 13869060 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 80613638 858.14 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404700 - Utilities 80613638 PG&E U.S. Bank
1080 85416210 -2520.84 05/23/2025 404160 - Veh. Maint. Service Contract 85416210 Refund Vehicle Maint. U.S. Bank
1080 11756358 120.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 11756358 Streamline U.S. Bank
1080 19075076 30.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 19075076 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 84122550 124.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 84122550 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 69184190 5.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 69184190 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 78773588 13.52 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 78773588 Station cleaners U.S. Bank
1080 10627504 163.72 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404700 - Utilities 10627504 EID water bill U.S. Bank
1080 84458356 19.99 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 84458356 Adobe U.S. Bank
1080 30065569 4.31 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404539 - Software License 30065569 Aplus U.S. Bank
1080 22544253 6.42 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 22544253 Station cleaner U.S. Bank
1080 20673101 8.79 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 20673101 Station cleaners U.S. Bank
1080 33285875 161.73 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404085 - Refuse Disposal 33285875 EDC Disposal U.S. Bank
1080 53996512 195.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 53996512 Training U.S. Bank
1080 10125055 1035.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404220 - Memberships 10125055 Ca Fire chiefs membership U.S. Bank
1080 29952409 71.48 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404606 - Fuel Purchases 29952409 Fuel U.S. Bank
1080 60731567 1349.10 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 60731567 Zip recruiter U.S. Bank
1080 60536702 195.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 60536702 Class Chief U.S. Bank
1080 78063157 495.00 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 78063157 ncti course r&r U.S. Bank
1080 84913092 518.73 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 84913092 ST Preposition reimb U.S. Bank
1080 70945850 70.44 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 70945850 Lodging training r&r U.S. Bank
1080 4164564 55.12 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 4164564 Sling Scheduler U.S. Bank
1080 3242025 50.67 MFPD05232025 05/23/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 3242025 CC Fee U.S. Bank

3180.32

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 5 of 128

Page 1 of 1



12:02 PM
06/17/25

Week of Jun 8, 25

Week of Jun 8, 25

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 6 of 128

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Bills for U.S. Bank El Dorado Co
June 8 - 14, 2025

Name Num Amount Terms Date Split Memo Name Address
1080 1244 04/22/25-1 120.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-1 Starlink U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-2 120.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-2 Streamline U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-3 124.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-3 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-4 31.50 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-4 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-5 795.28 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404700 - Utilities 04/22/25-5 PG&E U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-6 -0.49 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-6 credit Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-7 5.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-7 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-8 30.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-8 Microsoft U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-9 19.99 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-9 Adobe U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-10 4.65 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-10 Aplus U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-11 161.73 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404085 - Refuse Disposal 04/22/25-11 ED Disposal U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-12 126.57 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 04/22/25-12 Homedep U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-13 12.50 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-13 Indeed recruiting U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-14 520.32 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-14 Indeed recruiting U.S. Bank
1080 1244 042/22/25-15 1499.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 042/22/25-15 Ziprecruiter U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-16 508.76 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-16 Indeed recruiting U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-17 114.13 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 04/22/25-17 Homedep U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-18 72.70 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404606 - Fuel Purchases 04/22/25-18 Propel Fuel U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-19 52.65 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404161 - Veh Maint. Parts Direct Charge 04/22/25-19 Oil change U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-20 87.61 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404606 - Fuel Purchases 04/22/25-20 SAms Fuel C75 U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-21 250.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 04/22/25-21 Training class U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-22 56.00 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404539 - Software License 04/22/25-22 Sling Scheduler U.S. Bank
1080 1244 04/22/25-23 76.45 MFPD06102025 06/10/2025 404500 - Special Dept. Expense 04/22/25-23 Crdit Fee U.S. Bank

4788.35

Page 1 of 1



12:38 PM
06/19/25

Jun 11, 25

Jun 11, 25

Mosquito Fire Protection District
Bills for All Vendors

June 11, 2025

Name Num Amount Terms Date Split Name Address Memo
12 84075611 18,199.96 MFPD06112025 06/11/2025 404463 - Equip. Telephone & Radio 49er Communications Inc 84075611 Radios & supplies 50-50 grant
544 19242616 737.36 MFPD06112025 06/11/2025 404507 - Fire & Safety Supplies Cascade Fire Equipment 19242616 Wildland supplies 50-50 grant
4461 4461444 444.26 MFPD06112025 06/11/2025 404161 - Veh Maint. Parts Direct Charge Edward Dwyer 4461444 Reimb Truck Decals
4461 44611197 1,197.95 MFPD06112025 06/11/2025 404160 - Veh. Maint. Service Contract Edward Dwyer 44611197 Reimb Vehicle Maint
20,579.53

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 7 of 128

Page 1 of 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Special Meeting
Thursday March 27, 2024 - 6:15 PM
Mosquito FPD Station 75
8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557

MINUTES

Item Presenter

1. CALL TO ORDER. 6:15 PM
L. Uggla

Topic/Date: MFPD Board Meeting March 27, 2024 Special Meeting
Time: 6:15 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

If you have a disability and are requesting an accommodation pursuant to the

Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact district at 530-626-9017 or

admin75@mfpd.us
2. ROLL CAL AND QUORUM ANNOUNCED. Board Directors Present; Karryn Morris, | L. Uggla
David Blaine, Kirk Bronsord and Linnea Uggla.
3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA. Motion to Adopt Agenda by Director Uggla, second | L. Uggla
by Director Bronsord.
4. CLOSED SESSION L. Uggla

Chief’'s Email Access.
5. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION. L. Uggla

6. ADJOURN 6:55 PM

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 8 of 128




Mosquito Fire Protection District

Board of Directors Meeting
Thursday, March 27, 2025 — 7:00 PM
Mosquito FPD Station 75
8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557

MINUTES
Item Presenter

1. Call to Order. 7 PM L. Uggla
Topic/Date: MFPD Board Meeting March 27, 2025
Time: 7:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
If you have a disability and are requesting an accommodation pursuant to the Americans with
Disabilities Act, please contact district at 530-626-9017 or admin75@mfpd.us
2. Roll Call & Quorum announced. Board Directors present; Karryn Morris, David Blaine, Kirk | L. Uggla
Bronsord and Linnea Uggla.
3. Pledge of Allegiance. L. Uggla
4. Public Comment Public may address the board on any District related item

not included in this agenda.

We ask that your comments remain civil and respectful. Any lack of decorum will

result in the forfeiture of your time.

Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes in duration.
5. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR The L. Uggla

Board may make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the agenda
including moving items to or from the Consent Calendar and adopt the agenda and the
Consent Calendar with one single vote. A Board member may request an item be
removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion and separate Board action. At the
appropriate time as called by the Board Chair, members of the public may make a
comment on matters on the Consent Calendar prior to Board action.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/{/8685165316?pwd=Mkd3WEtiNFpaTUZLVmFicOQ3dmNNUT09
Meeting ID: 868 516 5316
Passcode: 223344

OneviERp robite/2025>> Page 9 of 128



mailto:admin75@mfpd.us
https://zoom.us/j/8685165316?pwd=Mkd3WEtjNFpaTUZLVmFic0Q3dmNNUT09

+16699006833,,8685165316#,,,,*223344# US (San Jose)
Dial by your location
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 868 516 5316
Passcode: 223344

Announcement regarding zoom: Malfunction today. It will be fixed by next meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

5.1 Approval of Expenditures- Expenses 2025 February 24
Approval of Expenditures- Expenses 2025 February 25
Approval of Expenditures- Expenses 2025 February 27

5.2 Minutes: 2025 February 27

Motion to approve Consent Callendar and Agenda by Director Blain, second by Director
Uggla. Ayes: Directors Morris, Blain, Uggla and Bronsord. Noes: 0

6. Issue Iltems

6.1 Update on Board Vacancy. Relevant Documents will be Posed to the public
and on website. Cutoff date for applicants April 17. Board special meeting will
be held to review candidates.

6.2 Agenda Item on Decorum by Chief. Request that Director Morris review the
Policies related to decorum, with chief Dwyer.

6.3 Hiring of Grant Coordinator and Captain Update. There were 10 candidates of
which the best 3 will have site visits and in person interview with chief Dwyer.

7. Committee Reports

7.1 Finance Committee
7.2 District Auxiliary Mosquito
7.3 Support Group

L. Uggla

D. Blain
E. Dwyer

E. Dwyer

D. Blain
M. Blain
T. Warner

8. Director’s Comments.

9. Adjourn. 8:50 PM
MFPD <<ppeRetefsatig it day April 24, 2025




Dedicated te Cur Commurity

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 11 of 128




Mosquito Fire Protection District

Special Meeting
Monday May 12, 2025 - 6 PM
Mosquito FPD Station 75
8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557

MINUTES

[tem

Presenter

1. Call to Order. 6 PM

Topic/Date: MFPD Board Meeting May 12, 2025 Special Meeting
Time: 6:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

If you have a disability and are requesting an accommodation pursuant to the
Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact district at 530-626-9017 or
admin75@mfpd.us.

Zoom:

https://usO6web.zoom.us/|/88473746957 ?pwd=KKgteAlbhdpa7oZdMWFRXnaCjlg83V.1

Meeting 884 7374 6957
Meeting passcode 223344

One tap mobile
+16699006833,,88473746957#,,,,¥223344# US (San Jose)

L. Uggla

2. Roll Call & Quorum announced. Board directors Present; Linnea Uggla, Kirk
Bronsord, David Blain, Bill Buhnerkempe and Trent Williams.

L. Uggla

3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA.
The Board may make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the
Agenda. Motion to approve Agenda with Amendment that Public comments with a
revised Policy going forward, as of next meeting, by Director Uggla, second by Director
Williams. Ayes: Directors Uggla, Williams, Buhnerkempe, Blain and Bronsord. Noes:0

L. Uggla

4. |ssue Items.
4.1 MFPD Board Roles. Motion to accept top 3 positions of Vice President, Open,
Secretary Trent Williams and Treasurer/ Finance Committee Chair William
Buhnerkempe, by Director Uggla, second by Director Bronsord.
Ayes: Directors: Uggla, blain, Williams, Buhnerkempe and Bronsord.

L. Uggla

L. Uggla

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 12 of 128



https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F88473746957%3Fpwd%3DKKgteAIbhdpa7oZdMWFRXnaCjIq83V.1&data=05%7C02%7Cmfpdclerk%40mfpd.us%7C11155a85efad4405d56e08dd8e643e05%7C2f0414551fd3482cbbf0858e41b54ca5%7C0%7C0%7C638823283360675504%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=stJC6Ay8OirwPBzWkrKVJauofxNmck%2FbiJtQ%2BdnCWK0%3D&reserved=0

Motion to approve Ad Hoc Committees; Finance Committee will be standing
committee with Chair William Buhnerkempe, Capital Improvement Directors
Bronsord and Williams, Strategic Planning by Director Williams and
Communications, no committee, will work with Board Secretary, by Director
Uggla, second by Director Bronsord. Ayes: Directors Uggla, Williams,
Buhnerkempe, Blain and Bronsord. Noes:0 L. Uggla
4.2 MFPD Board Minutes Update. Item tabled till next Meeting; per Board President
Uggla; all Directors to read the links from Ericke to be ready for next meeting.

4.3 MFPD Policy Committee establish. No Motion W. Buhnerkempe
4.4 MFPD Policies 1048 Compensation and Benefits. Table to Meeting May 22, W. Buhnerkempe
2025.
5. ADJOURN 7:05 PM L. Uggla

Next Regular Board Meeting- Thursday May 22, 2025 7:00pm

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 13 of 128




MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 ROCK CREEK ROAD
PLACERVILLE, CA 95667

(530) 626-9017
Fax (530) 626-3240

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a hearing on the appropriation limitation for
Mosquito Fire Protection District on June 26%™, 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the hearing was advertised and noticed as required by law; and,

WHEREAS, the Board received testimony and other evidence regarding the appropriation
limitation to be established for the Mosquito Fire Protection District.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Mosquito Fire Protection
District that the appropriation limit for the 2025-2026 fiscal year, as described in

Article XIll B of the State Constitution and implemented by Chapter 1205, Statutes of 1980,
is the sum of $ 403,220.91 computed as follows:

$378,469.04 (X) 1.0654 =S 403,220.91
2024-25 Approp. Limit  2025-26 Approp. Limit

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of Mosquito Fire
Protection District at a meeting of said Board held on the 26 day of June, 2025
by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Linnea Uggla
Chairman of Board of Directors

Sharlyn Fields
District Board Clerk Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 14 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025
Title: Prelim Budget
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item or Action Item

Summary:
There are two attachments.

Multi-column Preliminary Budget presented so people can better understand the Budget.
Single Column Preliminary Budget that needs to be approved and sent to County.

Recommendations:
1. Approve the budget.
2. Direct the Board Clerk to send a copy of the Budget and necessary minutes showing its

approval.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 15 of 128



5:14 PM
6/23/2025
Accrual Basis

Prelim Budget 25-26 V-#19

w/Pending Grant & Strike numbers July 2025 -
Finance Committee Reference June 2026
Revenue
0001 guess Carry over (38,592.78)
0100 - Prop Tax Curr Secured 184,763.00
0110 - Prop Tax Curr Unsecured 3,637.00
0130 - Unsecured Prop Tax Prior 100.00
0140- Supplemental Taxes 2,000.00
0150- Supplemental Prior 300.00
1175 - Special Tax Direct Assessments 188,000.00
0360- Penalties 3,000.00
0400 - Rev Interest 3,000.00
0820 - ST Homeowner Prop Tax relief 500.00
1060 Grants 119,250.50
1128 Federal: USDA (Strike teams) 250,000.00
1940 Misc Revenue 301,832.96
Total Revenue 1,015,910.68
Expense
300000 - Salaries and Employee Benefit
303000 - Perm Employees/Elect Official 199,927.75
303001 - Temporary Employees 49,920.00
303002 - Overtime 89,032.00
303004 - Stipends 219,250.00
303020 - Retirement 4,193.00
303021 - O.AS.D.I. 28,795.98
303022 - Medi Care 6,735.33
303030 - Vacation, Sick, Holiday 9,111.00
303040 - Health Insurance 9,000.00
303041 - Unemployment Insurance Employel| 11,518.50
303060 - Workers' Compensation Employer 20,779.00
Total 300000 - Salaries and Employee Benefif  648,262.56
400000 - Services and Supplies
404021 - Fire Turnouts 36,875.00
404022 - Uniforms 8,000.00
404040 - Telephone Co. Vendor Payments 1,200.00
404043 - Dispatch Fees-Contract 2,000.00
404060 - Food & Food Products 1,775.75
404080 - Household Expense-Station Supplies 400.00
404083 - Laundry 100.00
404085 - Refuse Disposal 2,500.00
404087 - Exterm / Fumgn Services 600.00
404100 - Insurance Premium 42,277.09
404144 - Maint. Computer System/Software 2,000.00
404145 - Maint. Equipment Parts 500.00
404160 - Veh. Maint. Outside labor 5,000.00
404161 - Veh Maint. Parts Direct Charge 5,500.00
404164 - Veh Maint. Tires & Tubes 3,300.00

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 16 of 128

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Prelim Budget 2025-2026
July 2025 through June 2026

MFPD Prelim Budget FY 25-26 v19 Single Column

Page 1 of 2



5:14 PM
6/23/2025
Accrual Basis

Prelim Budget 25-26 V-#19

w/Pending Grant & Strike numbers July 2025 -
Finance Committee Reference June 2026
404180 - Maint Building & Improvements 2,750.00
404197 - Maint Building Supplies 700.00
404200 - Medical, Dental & Lab Supplies 350.00
404220 - Memberships 1,700.00
404260 - Office Expense 1,500.00
404261 - Postage 250.00
404263 - Subscription Newspaper Journals 100.00
404300 - Professional & Specialized Serv 12,750.00
404304 * Agency fee County/ Lafco 548.92
404305 - Audit & Accounting Services 8,700.00
404313 - Legal Services 5,000.00
404322-Medical Exams 5,000.00
404324 - Medical Dental Lab Supplies 500.00
404400 - Publications & Legal Notices 200.00
404420 - Rent & Lease Equipment 1,000.00
404460 - Equip. Small tools & Instrument 500.00
404463 - Equipment Telephone Radio 150.00
404500 - Special Dept. Expense 24,596.00
404502 - Educational Materials 200.00
404507 - Fire & Safety Supplies 500.00
404539 - Software License 15,365.60
404600 - Transportation & Travel 175.00
404606 - Fuel Purchases 27,600.00
404609 - Staff Development 5,136.75
404700 - Utilities 15,000.00
Total 400000 - Services and Supplies 242,300.11
600000 - Fixed Assets
606020 - Buildings & Grounds 50,200.00
606040 - 606040 Equipment 29,515.00
Total 600000 - Fixed Assets 79,715.00
Contingency & Reserves
7700 Contingency 45,633.01
Total Expense 1,015,910.68
| 0.00

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 17 of 128

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Prelim Budget 2025-2026
July 2025 through June 2026

MFPD Prelim Budget FY 25-26 v19 Single Column

Page 2 of 2



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26, 2025

Title: MEFPD Policy 1200 District Board Members
Author: Trent Williams

Discussion Item [] or Action Item

Summary:

MEFPD Policy 1200 updated to reflect the addition of Secretary as a board officer position.

Recommendations:
1. Request that the Board approve this updated policy.

1of1
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 18 of 128



Policy Mosquito Fire Protection District

1200 Policy Manual

District Board Members

1200.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
To define as policy, the process of governing the Mosquito Fire Protection District.

1200.2 POLICY
The policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to adhere to the following Fire Board of Directors
Policies regarding Board members.

1200.2.1 DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Mosquito Fire Protection District is governed by a Board of Directors composed of five
members. These members are elected at large by the District's registered voters in the State's
General Election held every even year. Each director's term of office is four (4) years.

1200.2.2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ROLE

(@) The role of the Board is: (1) to formulate and evaluate policy to ensure the lawful
and efficient operation of the District, (2) to oversee the fiscal well-being of the
District, and (3) to select and retain competent administrative staff to manage District
operations. Routine matters concerning procedural and operational aspects of the
District are delegated to the professional staff members employed by the District. A
board member should strive to understand that his/her basic function is "policy” and
not"administration or operations".

(b) The District Board shall act only by Ordinance, Resolution, or Motion. A majority vote
of members of the District Board (3/5) is required on each action taken and the vote
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

1200.2.3 BOARD OFFICERS

(@) The officers of the Board are President, and Vice President and Secretary. Members
filling these positions serve at the pleasure of the Board and are selected by majority
vote of the Board at a regular board meeting.

(b) Should the President's position become permanently vacant for any reason, the
Vice President shall assume the role of President for the remainder of the former
President's term as an Officer. If any other officer position becomes permanently
vacant for any reason, the Board shall elect a replacement for that position at a regular
meeting as soon as practical.

1200.2.4 BOARD OFFICER ROLES

(@) President - The Board President shall:(1) preside over all Board meetings, (2) shall
ensure that an appropriate agenda is established and published for each meeting,
(3) shall sign all documents on behalf of the Board and District as may be required,
(4) be the primary interface between the Board and the Chief, and (5) shall have the
same rights and responsibilities as other Directors to participate in and vote on items
at Board meetings.

DS sOhFEbAtear s Aas 8 PR b ecion pisicr  "DRAFT™ District Board Members - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

District Board Members

(b) Vice President - The Vice President shall serve as acting president in the temporary
absence or disability of the President and shall become president upon the death,
resignation, or removal from office of the President.

(c) Secretary - The Board Secretary (1) is responsible for all board related
communications received or distributed, (2) ensures that all information released fully
represents decisions and intent of the Board of Directors, 3) ensure all agendas
and business items are memorialized in properly formatted Agenda Iltem Templates,
submitted no less than one week prior to regularly scheduled board meetings, (4)
confirms that agendas are being posted in accordance with district policies and
regulatory requirements. (5) The Board Secretary is also responsible to work with the
Board Clerk and Board President to ensure that board agendas are in accordance with
the Brown Act and related district policies. (6) The Secretary shall maintain a board
action list to assure follow up and closure occurs on all action items.

(d) Other - Budget preparation assistance becomes the responsibility of the Finance
Committee and all other responsibilities are assigned to the Fire Chief. Should the
Chief see a need for sign off he has access to both the Finance Committee and the
Board President. The Chief will report quarterly (March, June, September, December)
on the district fiscal condition.

1200.2.5 BOARD MEMBERS DECORUM

It is understood that Board Members will not always agree. Board members have the right
to maintain and express differing viewpoints, styles, opinions, and values. Nonetheless, Board
members should aspire to respect the dignity of their office and to observe common standards
of decorum to the extent possible.

In order to assist in the governing of the behavior between and among members of the Board of
Directors, the following rules shall be observed:

. Board Members' decisions and actions shall best serve the needs of the District's
citizens in-fight-of considering available resources and information available to the
Board at the time such decisions or actions take place.

. The dignity, style, values and opinions of each Director shall be respected.
. Responsiveness and attentive listening in communication is encouraged.
. Once the Board of Directors takes action, Directors should commit to supporting said
action and not create barriers to the implementation of the action that was taken.
1200.2.6 BOARD MEMBER RESIGNATION

(@) An office becomes vacant before the expiration of its term upon the delivery of a letter
of resignation by the resigning board member to the Board Clerk. The letter may be
delivered by mail, in person, or electronically.

(b) The letter of resignation shall specify a date on which the resignation will become
effective and no acceptance or rejection by the Board is necessary.

BRHES SThFEbAear s ARes A PR b ecion pisvicr " DRAFT™ District Board Members - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

District Board Members

(c) Avacancy shall occur if any member ceases to discharge the duty of his/her office for
the period of three (3) consecutive months by failing to attend regular board meetings.
For good cause, however, the Board may authorize the member's absence.

(d) A resignation occurs without the delivery of a letter of resignation if a Board Member
ceases to be an inhabitant of the District.

1200.2.7 HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION

It is the policy of the District to establish and maintain a work environment free of all forms of
harassment and discrimination. Such behaviors are unacceptable and will not be condoned or
tolerated on the part of any District member. All Directors, paid staff and volunteers must be familiar
and comply with the District's policies and California bills SB 1343 and AB 1825 prohibiting such
behaviors. Formal training shall be accomplished by completing mandatory classes every two (2)
years as required under California law.

1200.2.8 CODE OF ETHICS TRAINING

Assembly Bill 1234, passed by the California Legislature on October 7, 2005, requires that any
local agency providing compensation (either by salary or stipend) or reimbursement of expenses
to members of its legislative body must provide ethics training to those local agency officials
every two years. While Directors currently do not fall within the compensation or reimbursement
requirements of AB 1234, by policy all Directors shall meet the requirements of this law and provide
evidence of training compliance to the Board Clerk within three (3) months of assuming office.

1200.2.9 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The District shall adopt by Resolution and file with the Clerk of the County of El Dorado a Conflict
of Interest Code which satisfies the requirements of Government Code Sections 81000, et. seq.
The Resolution shall be reviewed and amended as necessary.

All members are required to report potential conflicts of economic interest even if they are not in a
designated classification. All members are disqualified from participating in government decisions
in which they have, or appear to have, a financial interest (Government Code 8§ 87100). When a
potential conflict of interest situation arises, it must be reported immediately through the chain of
command to the member's immediate supervisor and then the District Board Clerk.

DR SThFEb ARaR s ARds A PR Brhecion pisier ~ DRAFT™ District Board Members - 3



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26, 2025

Title: MEFPD Policy 1201 District Board Meetings
Author: Trent Williams

Discussion Item [] or Action Item

Summary:
MEFPD Policy 1201 updated to include the requirements for documenting Board Meeting
minutes, public distribution of packet and modifications for improved clarity.

Recommendations:
1. Request that the Board approve this updated policy.

1of1
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 22 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

District Board Meetings

1201.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
To define as policy, the process of governing the Mosquito Fire Protection District.

1201.2 POLICY
The policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to adhere to the following Fire Board of Directors
Policies regarding Board meetings.

1201.2.1 BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board of Director meetings are held at the Mosquito Fire Station, 8801 Rock Creek
Road, and are open to the public. The meeting date and time is generally the fourth Thursday of
each month at 7:00 PM. Emergency, special and committee meetings may be held within District
boundaries at a date and time as necessary.

1201.2.2 MEETING ATTENDANCE

The basic manner in which board members fulfill their elected responsibilities is through
attendance and active participation at regular, special, and emergency meetings. Members of
the Board are encouraged to attend all scheduled meetings.

1201.2.3 MEETING AGENDA (BROWN ACT REQUIREMENT)

(@) An agenda for each meeting held by the Board of Directors shall be developed and
posted in accordance with the provisions of the Brown Act.

(b) To assure Board familiarity with Brown Act provisions, the Board President, through
District's legal counsel or other satisfactory means, shall schedule a workshop
covering relevant portions of the Act. The workshop will be scheduled within the first
quarter of each odd-numbered calendar year

1201.2.4 AGENDA ITEMS

A Director or Chief may place on the agenda an item for the Board’s consideration by submitting
it to the Board Clerk in a timely manner (at least 7 days before the regularly scheduled meeting).
The item should include a designation as a discussion item or action item.

1201.2.5 BOARD MEMBER PACKAGE
Exeeptin-exigent circumstances, t The Board Clerk shall compile a Board Member Package for

each scheduled meeting and shall provide a copy of that package to all Board Members, to the

requesting public, and the Chief at-leastthree(3) calendar-days prior-to-the scheduled - meeting

date and be distributed in accordance with Brown Act requirements.

The Board Package shall contain all data pertinent to the meeting including issue papers for each
"Action Item" if applicable. At least three (3) additional Board Packages shall be printed and be
available for the public's use during the scheduled meeting.

S R R MBI, ™" DRAFT* Distit Board Meetings - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

District Board Meetings

1201.2.6 CORRESPONDENCE

1201.3 BOARD MEETING MINUTES
To ensure board meeting proceedings are accurately documented in a concise, cost-effective

manner, minutes should primarily record board decisions. Comments from individual members or
the public should be minimized unless relevant to the board's final determination.

1201.3.1 CONTENT REQUIREMENTS
Minutes should include:

(@) Meeting details: Date, time, location, attendees, absences, late arrivals, departures,
and adjournment.

(b) Meeting type: Regular, Special, or Adjourned Regular.

(c) Agenda items: Topics considered, decisions made, and agreed-upon follow-up
actions.

(d) Voting records: Any action taken, including votes and abstentions.

1201.3.2 SUMMARY STYLE
Minutes will follow a Brief Summary format, focusing on board decision-making rather

than individual discussions. The minutes should:

(@) Record final decisions concisely.

(b) Summarize key points relevant to decision-making (but not individual viewpoints).

(c) Avoid direct attribution of comments.

Board members wishing to memorialize comments should incorporate them into motions or submit
written statements for inclusion with agenda items.

1201.3.3 PUBLIC COMMENTS & REPORTS

(@) Public comments should list the speaker's name (if provided) and general stance (e.qg.,
"Mr. Jones opposed Project X"). Public members seeking to memorialize comments
are to submit written statements which shall be retained and attached to the minutes.

BERHEES SThFEb AeaR s ARss a PR rbecion pisier~ DRAFT ™ District Board Meetings - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

District Board Meetings

(b) Ceremonial presentations and event reports should be noted with their subject matter
only.

1201.3.4 VOTING & CONSENNSUS

(@) Allvotes (ayes and noes) shall be recorded.

(b) Informal consensus can be noted by naming dissenting members with an optional brief
reason (e.g., "Mr. Jones dissented due to budget concerns").

1201.3.5 COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committees subject to the Brown Act should follow the same Brief Summary format, focusing on
key determinations without attributing comments to individuals.

1201.3.6 FORMATTING CONSIDERATIONS

(@) Minutes should remain neutral and restrained in tone.

(b) Passive voice is preferred for general observations (e.g., "It was suggested that...").

(c) Content should be self-contained and logically sequenced for clarity.

1201.3.7 KEY FOCUS
Minutes should document decisions and accountability, not serve as task lists or verbatim records

of discussions.

1201.4 CORRESPONDENCE

Any correspondence delivered to Station 75 pertaining to District business addressed to the
President, Board Members, or other correspondence as determined by the Chief to be pertinent,
shall be delivered to the Board Clerk time and date stamped (so it can be later determined
when it arrived), and placed on file in the administrative office when received. If there exists
a condition where some or all Board members can not access the station to review the Board
correspondence, then the correspondence shall be scanned and e-mailed to the affected board
members. The communication shall be referenced in the Board packet for the next reqular board
meeting. It shall be the individual Board member's responsibility to become familiar with that
correspondence prior to each regular board meeting. On occasion, individual Directors may be
recipients of correspondence that pertain to the District that they feel needs to be relayed to other
Board members. These items should be forwarded to the Board Clerk for distribution.

BERHES SThFEbAeaR s ARs A PRl Brbecion pisicr DRAFT ™ District Board Meetings - 3



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26, 2025

Title: Extrication Training Vehicle Removal
Author: Trent Williams

Discussion Item [] or Action Item

Summary:

The vehicle used for extrication training needs to be removed from the parking lot and the training
area cleaned up.

Recommendations:
Request that the Fire Chief identify how and when the vehicle will be removed and the area
cleaned.

1of1
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 26 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26, 2025

Title: Disposition of Surplus Fire Department Vehicles
Author: Trent Williams

Discussion Item [] or Action Item

Summary:

A committee consisting of two Board members, two members of the public and the current Fire
Chief should be established to generate a disposition plan for each of the following surplus MFPD

vehicles.
1. E75
2. SQ75
3. P75
4. U75
Recommendations:

Request that the Board identify membership for this committee, establish a deadline for
presentation of recommendation to the Board, and initiate its engagement.

1of1
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 27 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26, 2025

Title:

Fire Chief Hiring Committee

Author: Trent Williams

Discussion Item [] or Action Item

Summary:

A committee consisting of two Board members, three members of the public and the current Fire
Chief should be established to hire a new Fire Chief. The committee shall -

. Define the Role and Expectations — Develop a detailed job description outlining

responsibilities, qualifications, leadership expectations, and performance metrics.

Source Qualified Candidates — Advertise the position through professional networks, fire
service organizations, and local government channels to attract a diverse pool of applicants.

Screen Applications — Review resumes and cover letters to shortlist candidates based on
experience, leadership skills, and alignment with department needs.

Identify Interview Team — Solicit local area department Fire Chiefs to assist with the
following-

a. Conduct Interviews — Hold structured interviews with selected candidates, assessing
their strategic thinking, crisis management skills, and ability to foster department
morale.

b. Perform Background and Reference Checks — Verify credentials, past employment,
and leadership effectiveness through reference calls and background screenings.

Reach Consensus on Final Selection — The committee in conjunction with the local Fire
Chief’s, should deliberate and agree on the best candidate based on qualifications, leadership
style, and vision for the department.

Present the Candidate for Approval — Submit the final selection to the MFPD board for
formal approval.

Negotiate Compensation and Terms — Offer a competitive salary and benefits package,
ensuring alignment with department budget and expectations.

Support the Transition — Assist the new fire chief in onboarding, introducing them to
department personnel, and ensuring a smooth leadership transition.

1of2

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 28 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Recommendations:
Request that the Board identify membership for this committee, establish a deadline for
presentation of recommendation to the Board, and initiate its engagement. Transition to be
completed by August 1, 2026.

2 0f2
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 29 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26,2025

Title: Policies not needing changes.
Author: W. Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

The following Eight (8) Policies listed below were not noticed as being in any need of changes.
Therefore, they are for review and approval. If you see a change that needs to be made, please say so at
the meeting.

Policy 204
211
614
1013
1027
1051
1054
1108

Recommendations:
1. Approved the listed policies and republish.
2. Update the Reviewed/Modified Table (Separate Issue Paper) with today’s date.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 30 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

204 Policy Manual

California Fair Political Practices Commission
Filings

204.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide a uniform method for complying with the Fair Political
Practices Commission (FPPC) requirements, for designated members to report all potential
economic conflicts of interest to the District.

204.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to comply with state requirements,
and designate certain job classifications as required to file a Statement of Economic Interests
(Government Code § 87300).

204.3 PROCEDURE

The District requires certain job classifications to file a Statement of Economic Interests
(Government Code § 87300). These job classifications have been identified based on the
opportunity for personal gain that could result from official actions as a member of this district.

204.4 DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Fire Chief shall designate the District Board Clerk to be the Conflict of Interest Filing Officer
for the District, who shall be responsible for administering the filings in accordance with applicable
laws.

All Statement of Economic Interests filings shall be screened for compliance by the District Board
Clerk. Members in designated classifications are required to disclose certain economic interests,
which may include investments, interests in real property, income and business interests. All
information provided by members on the Statement of Economic Interests is a matter of public
record.

The Eldorado County Elections Office is the lead agency monitoring reporting requirements of
California Form 700 and the Public Service Ethics Education online course. The District Board
Clerk shall coordinate compliance with Form 700 and the online ethic course through the Elections
Office.

204.4.1 FILING REQUIREMENTS

Members in designated job classifications must file the following type of statements:
. Assuming office statement within 30 days after assuming office
. Annual statement due by April 1 each year
. Leaving office statement within 30 days after leaving the position

. Submitted through Board Clerk to County Elections Office

BRI £0646/2025025 Bage, Al RiiR%Reserved. California Fair Political Practices Commission
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District Filings - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

California Fair Political Practices Commission Filings

204.4.2 FILING PROCESS
The filing process is administered by the District Board Clerk and includes the following
procedures:

. A Statement of Economic Interests form and filing instructions shall be distributed
annually to designated district members. Additionally, forms shall be sent to
designated members upon notice of appointment or termination.

. A completed Statement of Economic Interests shall be returned to the District Board
Clerk by the date indicated on the instructions.

. The District Board Clerk shall screen the Statement of Economic Interests for
completeness, potential conflicts of interest and to ensure all designated members
have filed a statement, in accordance with FPPC regulations.

. Upon completion of the screening process, the District Board Clerk shall retain the
original for a period of time in accordance with the FFPC and the district’s established
records retention schedules.

. A list of all district members with potential conflict situations will be compiled and
maintained in the Administration Division.

. Any change to the FPPC filing process shall be submitted to the governing body for
review and approval.

204.4.3 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

All members are required to report potential conflicts of economic interest even if they are not in a
designated classification. All members are disqualified from participating in government decisions
in which they have, or appear to have, a financial interest (Government Code 8§ 87100). When a
potential conflict of interest situation arises, it must be reported immediately through the chain of
command to the member's immediate supervisor and then the District Board Clerk.

204.4.4 DESIGNATED CLASSIFICATIONS
The Mosquito Fire Protection District has designated the following classifications as required to
complete a Statement of Economic Interests document in accordance with FPPC regulations:

o Board of Directors
o Fire Chief

o Fire Officers

&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁ %%Pgm%%? ’\5%/55% % Efgiégt?c?igﬁ%istrict California Fair Political Practices Colr:r;lmigsssif)g



Mosquito Fire Protection District

2 1 1 Policy Manual

Solicitation of Funds

211.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that fundraising activities associated with the District are
consistent with its mission, values and legal status. This policy applies to all fundraising activities
involving the District or the use of the district name, insignias, equipment or facilities.

211.1.1 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

Fundraising - The collection of money through donations, sales or event programming for the
purpose of charitable donation or organizational budget enhancement.

211.2 POLICY

It shall be the policy of this district that all fundraising activities involving on-duty members or use
of district equipment, and that provide financial benefit to the District, must be authorized by the
Fire Chief or the authorized designee prior to initiating solicitations.

Authorized fundraising activities should not indicate or imply that a donation will influence services
provided by the District. Members engaged in fundraising activities are expected to act ethically
regarding the solicitation of funds, the interaction with donors or potential donors and the
maintenance of fundraising records.

Members are prohibited from soliciting any goods or services from local businesses, groups or
individuals for the purpose of providing incentives, prizes or give-aways to attendees of district-
sponsored or hosted events, or to events when members attend as representatives of the District.

211.3 PROCEDURES
Fundraising activities or events involving the District should incorporate the following elements:

(a) Compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations

(b)  Compliance with district and governing-body policies

(c) A benefit to the District that is consistent with the district mission

(d)  An accurate description of the purpose for which funds are requested.

(e) Alimitation on the frequency of solicitations to avoid placing undue pressure on donors

(f)  Identification of the individual soliciting funds as a volunteer, a member of this district
or a hired solicitor

(9) An admonishment that encourages donors to seek independent advice if there is
reason to believe that a proposed gift might significantly affect the donor’s financial
position, taxable income or relationship with other family members.

B R A B e Sofcaton ofFunds -1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Solicitation of Funds

(h) The assurance that donor requests to limit the frequency of contacts, to prohibit
solicitation by telephone or other technology and to reduce or cease sending printed
or electronically transmitted material concerning the District will be honored

(i)  Respect of the donors’ privacy and a commitment that the District will not sell or
otherwise make available donors’ names and contact information

Commercial or corporate sponsorship of fundraising activities or events may be allowed provided
that it has been preapproved by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

211.4 DISTRICT-SPONSORED EVENTS
The following also apply to district-sponsored fundraising events:

(@) Fundraising events should be clearly identified by a sign indicating the name, product,
service, price and purpose of the event.

(b) At least one member should be present during the entire event.

(c) Individuals participating in the event should be briefed and supervised to ensure their
activities are consistent with this policy.

(d) Individuals participating in the event should not be compensated by a commission or
a percentage of the amount collected.

(e) Funds raised should be deposited no later than the next business day.
()  All donors should receive a receipt for the amount of their donation.

(g) Fundraising activities should not delay emergency response or otherwise compromise
the mission of the organization.

(h)  Fundraising that takes place on public-owned or private property will be done with the
knowledge and approval of the property custodian or owner.

(i)  Fundraising that occurs on public ways or near roadways will be coordinated with the
responsible law enforcement agency for the protection of pedestrians, motorists and
event participants.

211.5 FUNDRAISING ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

Fundraising for the benefit of a non-profit charitable third party (e.g., blood drive, burn victims,
surviving families) having no direct affiliation with the District is permissible provided that the
fundraising standards and event prerequisites listed above are followed.

Any materials associated with a third-party fundraising activity shall be approved by the Fire Chief
or the authorized designee prior to the activity. In addition, there should be a written agreement
between the District and the organizers of the activity that includes:

(@) Written proof that the event is for a charitable purpose.

BERHEAES SGhFebiatar A i PR 2ehecion piswric Solicitation of Funds - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Solicitation of Funds

(b)  Assignment of responsibility to the organizers for all direct costs incurred for the event.

(c) Assignment of responsibility to the organizers for the collection and reporting of any
applicable taxes.

(d)  Written instructions regarding the maintenance of funds raised on behalf of others. The
funds shall be maintained in a separate fund and not commingled with other district
funds.

The District reserves the right to require additional conditions including, but not limited to, evidence
of insurance coverage or appropriate indemnification.

B R B e Solcaton ofFunds -3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Training Records

614.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for accumulating and maintaining records of
all training provided by the District and all training received by individual district members. This
policy shall apply to all training received but particularly training that is mandated by an external
force such as a law, statue or regulation.

614.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to maintain comprehensive records of all
training provided by the District, and all training received by district members. The Training Officer
or the authorized designee shall be responsible for creating and maintaining training records. All
members of the District are responsible for assisting the Training Officer in documenting training
activities by signing course rosters, submitting certificates of completion from outside training or
providing other means of training documentation.

Training records may be documented utilizing either hard copies stored in a traditional filing
system or via electronic files. All electronic training records will be redundantly stored using district-
approved secure electronic file storage systems.

614.3 MASTER TRAINING CALENDAR

The Training Officerwill create and maintain an annual master training calendar for the District.
This calendar will document all district-provided, regularly scheduled training opportunities. The
master training calendar should be a living document, reflecting any changes made in the actual
training schedule or actual training opportunities provided throughout the year. The training
opportunities in the master training calendar should include, but are not limited to:

(@) Allfederal or state mandated training. Examples include courses that address sexual
harassment prevention, heat illness prevention, medical records privacy, personal
protective equipment, bloodborne pathogens, CPR and hearing protection.

(b) All federal or state mandated training drills, manipulative drills, skills or equipment
testing, including annual audiograms and fit testing for Occupational Safety and Health
Administration/National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA/NIOSH)-
approved masks and respirators.

(c) All California Incident Command Certification System (CICCS) training provided by
the District.

(d) Specific training and certification for "all-hazards" positions, based on the Incident
Command System (ICS), the National Incident Management System (NIMS) or
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) courses.

(e) AIINIMS, ICS, SEMS and NIMS-compliant incident management system courses.

(H Al Emergency Medical Services (EMS) pre-hospital care, continuing education
courses or programs provided by the District.

BERHEAES SGhFeb/atar, A i PR 2fhiecion pisuric Training Records - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Training Records

(g) Any training opportunity scheduled through the Training Division and intended to be
provided division-wide to each of the Divisions.

(h)  Any training opportunity utilizing instruction from outside the District.
(i)  Any interagency cooperative training program or activity.
()  Any regularly scheduled skills or job performance training and testing evolutions.

Copies of each year's master training calendar will be maintained and retained in the Training
Division files based on district-established records retention schedules.

614.4 DISTRICT TRAINING RECORDS
The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all training provided by the
District. The information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:

(&) The course title.

(b)  An outline of the subject matter and specific details of any information mandated by
federal or state code, OSHA regulation or other requirement.

(c) The dates the course was provided to members.
(d) The instructor names, qualifications and/or certifications.

(e) Copies of course curriculum, course duration, information sheets or other course
content provided to students.

(H  Copies of course evaluations submitted by students.

(g) Attendance records for each course session, including each member's name or other
identifier.

614.5 INDIVIDUAL TRAINING RECORDS

The Training Division will create and maintain an individual training file for each member of the
District. The training files will be kept separate from the district's personnel files. The member
training files should be used to document a member's training courses and training-related
programs and activities.

The training files shall not be used to store any work-performance records, member conduct
records, member disciplinary records or any other documentation that is not specifically training-
related. Information entered into the member training files will be a permanent part of that record.
No training information or entries will be removed from the file unless the record is found to be
factually incorrect or erroneously entered into that member's training file. Each member's training
file will be part of that member's permanent record of activity while employed by the District.

When a member ends employment with the District, that member's training file will be archived
and maintained in accordance with the district's established records retention schedule.

Members of the District shall be provided access to their individual training file upon request.
A member may request to review his/her training file either verbally or in writing. The Training
Officer should facilitate those requests as soon as practicable but in all cases within 21 days of

BERHEAES SOhFebiatar Rads it PR 2ehiecion pisuric Training Records - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Training Records

the member's request to review his/her file. Members may not add or remove any document or
information from the training file without the express approval of the Training Officer. Training
Division members shall be allowed to photocopy or otherwise reproduce images of any entries
in their individual training file.

Member training files should be organized to readily allow for the retrieval of specific training
subject documentation, particularly in regard to documentation of any mandated training subject
compliance.

Member training files should contain documentation of all work- or job-related licensing and
certification that the member earns, achieves or is awarded. Information regarding member
progress toward or application for licensing and certification should also be stored in the member
training files. Examples include CICCS coursework, CICCS position task books and certification,
NIMS certifications, SEMS certifications, California State Fire Marshal certifications, California
Office of Emergency Services certifications (OES) and State of California pre-hospital care
provider continuing education coursework, licensing and certification records (paramedic and
Emergency Medical Technician).

614.6 TRAINING RECORDS FROM PREVIOUS EMPLOYERS

The Training Officer may request that new members obtain and submit copies of any previous
employer training files for inclusion in their Mosquito Fire Protection District training file. All
members of the District may submit training records from previous employers to the Training
Officer for inclusion in their individual training file. The Training Officer will evaluate any submitted
training records obtained during previous employment and will add any pertinent information to
the member's training file as appropriate.

614.7 RELEASE OF FORMER MEMBER TRAINING RECORDS

Upon written request, the individual training file of any former Mosquito Fire Protection District
member may be copied and released to either the former member or to a third-party upon receipt
of a signed written request from a former member of the District. The written request should
include the past member's full name, approximate dates of employment with the District and date
of separation from employment with the District. In the event that the former member is requesting
that copies of his/her file be sent directly to a third party, the written request should include a
statement authorizing the Mosquito Fire Protection District to release copies to the named third

party.

BERHEAES SOhFebiatar s a8 PR 2ehecion pisuric Training Records -3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

1013.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to prevent activities or behaviors that may lead
to disciplinary actions or dismissal.

1013.2 POLICY
It is the policy of this district that its members strive to attain the highest professional standard of

conduct and discharge their duties in a courteous and professional manner.

1013.3 PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

All members should be governed by the ordinary and reasonable rules of behavior observed by
law-abiding citizens, and should conduct themselves at all times in such manner as to reflect
favorably on the District. Conduct unbecoming a member shall include that which discredits the
District or the person as a member of the District or which impairs the operation or efficiency of
the District or its members.

All members should conduct themselves in a manner that will not impair the good order and
discipline of the District. Members should not, while on-duty, be insubordinate, indulge in offensive,
obscene or uncivil language, verbal or physical altercations or threats thereof or conduct which
might cause injury to another person.

Additionally, all members will familiarize and conduct themselves according to the National Society
of Executive Fire Officers' Firefighter Code of Ethics, both on and off duty.

See attachment: Firefighter Code of Ethics.pdf

1013.4 INTERACTION WITH THE PUBLIC

In the performance of their duties, members should be courteous to the public and tactful. They
should control their tempers, exercise reasonable patience and discretion, and should not engage
in any argumentative discussions even when provoked.

In the performance of their duties, members should not use coarse, violent, profane, or insolent
language or gestures, and should not express prejudice or discrimination (Government Code §
12940 et seq.).

1013.5 COURTESY TO MEMBERS
Members should be courteous and respectful in their relations with all members of the District.

Members shall not use coarse, violent, profane, or insolent language or gestures, and shall not
express prejudice or discrimination (Government Code § 12940 et seq.).

B R BT e Conductand Benevior - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

1013.6 DISCRIMINATION, OPPRESSION, OR FAVORITISM

Unless required by law or policy, discriminating against, oppressing, or providing favoritism to
any person because of actual or perceived characteristics such as race, ethnicity, national origin,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, economic status,
cultural group, veteran status, marital status, and any other classification or status protected
by law, or intentionally denying or impeding another in the exercise or enjoyment of any right,
privilege, power, or immunity, knowing the conduct is unlawful, is prohibited.

1013.7 CONFORMANCE TO LAWS
Members shall obey all laws of the United States and of any state and local jurisdiction in which

the member is present.

1013.8 DEROGATORY OR MALICIOUS STATEMENTS

Members should not be a party to any malicious gossip, report or activity which would tend to
disrupt district morale or bring discredit to the District or any member thereof. Member questions
concerning district policy, activities, officers and/or safety issues shall be submitted by official
written communication to the member's immediate supervisor or Fire Chief.

1013.9 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in political activities of any kind while on-duty. Members are also
prohibited from engaging in any political activity off-duty while wearing any uniform items or
equipment that could identify them as members of the District.

1013.10 SEXUAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in any sexual activity while on-duty. This includes use of any
electronic device to communicate or receive messages, photos or any other content of a sexual
or provocative nature.

1013.11 ILLEGAL GAMBLING

Members should not engage or participate in any form of illegal gambling at any time while on-
duty. This includes accessing gaming websites from computers or any electronic device, whether
district-issued or owned by the member.

1013.12 GIFTS AND GRATUITIES

With the exception of approved fundraising activities, members should not solicit or accept any
gift, including money, tangible or intangible personal property, or any service, gratuity, favor,
entertainment, hospitality, loan, promise, or any other thing of value from any person, business,
or organization that is doing business with, or seeking to do business with the District.

If it may reasonably be inferred that the person, business, or organization seeks to influence the
actions of an official or seeks to affect the performance of an official while on-duty, the incident
should be immediately reported to the next level supervisor. This rule does not take the place of

BERKEAES <GhFebiatesrs, hads 8 PRa e ecion biswic Conduct and Behavior - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Conduct and Behavior

any relevant requirements applicable to individuals under Government Code § 1090 et seq. or the
State Political Reform Act, Government Code 8§ 87100 et seq.

1013.13 OFFERS OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS OF THE HEART
Members who are approached with monetary donations shall direct the person or entity to
Administration for instruction on proper ways to donate.

At no time should a member accept any monetary donation or gift for personal use. If a citizen
offers a gift of a non-monetary nature, such as food or product, the gift shall be placed in an area
of the station or office to be shared by all members.

At no time shall a member consider a gift of the heart as a personal present.

1013.14 ABUSE OF POSITION

Members should not use their official positions, official identification cards, or badges to avoid the
consequences of illegal acts or for other non-work-related personal gain. Members shall not lend
to another person their identification cards or badges or permit their identification cards or badges
to be photographed or reproduced without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Members should not authorize the use of their name, photograph, or official title that identifies them
as district members (e.g., in connection with testimonials or advertisements of any commodity or
commercial enterprise) without the approval of the Fire Chief.

1013.15 PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND APPEARANCES

Members should not address public gatherings, appear on radio or television, prepare any
articles for publication, act as correspondents to a newspaper or periodical, or release or divulge
investigative information or information on any other matter of the District while presenting
themselves or in any way identifying themselves as representing the District, without the approval
of the Fire Chief.

B BB A B e Conductand Benevior -3



Policy Manual

Attachments

BERKEAES <GhFebiaitasrs, hads e PR e iecion pisuic Attachments - 4



Attachment

Policy Manual

Firefighter Code of Ethics.pdf

B R B e Frefier Code of Efics paf -5



FIREFIGHTER CODE OF ETHICS

Background

The Fire Service is a noble calling, one which is founded on mutual respect and trust between firefighters
and the citizens they serve. To ensure the continuing integrity of the Fire Service, the highest standards of
ethical conduct must be maintained at all times.

Developed in response to the publication of the Fire Service Reputation Management White Paper, the
purpose of this National Firefighter Code of Ethics is to establish criteria that encourages fire service
personnel to promote a culture of ethical integrity and high standards of professionalism in our field. The
broad scope of this recommended Code of Ethics is intended to mitigate and negate situations that may result
in embarrassment and waning of public support for what has historically been a highly respected profession.

Ethics comes from the Greek word ethos, meaning character. Character is not necessarily defined by how a
person behaves when conditions are optimal and life is good. It is easy to take the high road when the path
is paved and obstacles are few or non-existent. Character is also defined by decisions made under pressure,
when no one is looking, when the road contains land mines, and the way is obscured. As members of
the Fire Service, we share a responsibility to project an ethical character of professionalism, integrity,
compassion, loyalty and honesty in all that we do, all of the time.

We need to accept this ethics challenge and be truly willing to maintain a culture that is consistent with the
expectations outlined in this document. By doing so, we can create a legacy that validates and sustains the
distinguished Fire Service institution, and at the same time ensure that we leave the Fire Service in better
condition than when we arrived.

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 44 of 128


http://www.firecompanies.com/MFC/public/userfiles/file/Firefighter%20Behavior/Reputation%20Management%20White%20Paper.pdf

FIREFIGHTER CODE OF ETHICS

I understand that I have the responsibility to conduct myself in a manner that reflects proper ethical
behavior and integrity. In so doing, I will help foster a continuing positive public perception of the fire
service. Therefore, I pledge the following...

« Always conduct myself, on and off duty, in a manner that reflects positively on myself, my department
and the fire service in general.

« Accept responsibility for my actions and for the consequences of my actions.

« Support the concept of fairness and the value of diverse thoughts and opinions.

« Avoid situations that would adversely affect the credibility or public perception of the fire service
profession.

o Be truthful and honest at all times and report instances of cheating or other dishonest acts that
compromise the integrity of the fire service.

 Conduct my personal affairs in a manner that does not improperly influence the performance of my
duties, or bring discredit to my organization.

« Be respectful and conscious of each member’s safety and welfare.

» Recognize that I serve in a position of public trust that requires stewardship in the honest and efficient
use of publicly owned resources, including uniforms, facilities, vehicles and equipment and that these
are protected from misuse and theft.

» Exercise professionalism, competence, respect and loyalty in the performance of my duties and use
information, confidential or otherwise, gained by virtue of my position, only to benefit those I am
entrusted to serve.

« Avoid financial investments, outside employment, outside business interests or activities that conflict
with or are enhanced by my official position or have the potential to create the perception of impropriety.

 Never propose or accept personal rewards, special privileges, benefits, advancement, honors or gifts
that may create a conflict of interest, or the appearance thereof.

« Never engage in activities involving alcohol or other substance use or abuse that can impair my mental
state or the performance of my duties and compromise safety.

 Never discriminate on the basis of race, religion, color, creed, age, marital status, national origin,
ancestry, gender, sexual preference, medical condition or handicap.

o Never harass, intimidate or threaten fellow members of the service or the public and stop or report the
actions of other firefighters who engage in such behaviors.

« Responsiblyusesocial networking, electronic communications, or other media technology opportunities
in a manner that does not discredit, dishonor or embarrass my organization, the fire service and the
public. I also understand that failure to resolve or report inappropriate use of this media equates to
condoning this behavior.

Developed by the National Society of Executive Fire Officers

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 45 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

1027.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Mosquito Fire Protection District has zero-tolerance for and prohibits the use of drugs and
alcohol in the workplace in order to provide a safer work environment for members and to
protect the public's safety and welfare. Members are also prohibited from responding to District
calls for service after they have consumed alcohol or any prescribed medication which could
cause impairment. This policy applies to all members when they are on District property or when
performing District-related business elsewhere (41 USC § 8103).

1027.2 POLICY
It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to provide a drug-free workplace for all
members.

1027.3 GENERAL GUIDELINES
Alcohol and drug use in the workplace or on district time can endanger the health and safety of
district members and the public.

Members who have consumed any amount of an alcoholic beverage, cannabis, controlled
substance (21 USC § 812), prescription medication, or a combination thereof, that would tend to
adversely affect their mental or physical abilities shall not report for duty. Affected members shall
notify the Fire Chief or the appropriate supervisor as soon as they are aware that they will not be
able to report to work. If a member is unable to make the notification, every effort should be made
to have a representative contact the supervisor in a timely manner. If the member is adversely
affected while on-duty, the member shall be immediately removed and released from work (see
the Work Restrictions section in this policy).

1027.3.1 USE OF MEDICATIONS

Members should not use any medications that will impair their ability to safely and completely
perform their duties. Members who are medically required or need to take any such medication
shall report that need to their immediate supervisor prior to commencing any on-duty status.

1027.3.2 MEDICAL CANNABIS
Possession, use, or being under the influence of medical cannabis on-duty is prohibited and may
lead to disciplinary action.

1027.4 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

A voluntary employee assistance program may be available to assist those who wish to seek
help for alcohol and drug problems (41 USC § 8103). Insurance coverage that provides treatment
for drug and alcohol abuse also may be available. Employees should contact the Administration,
their insurance providers, or the employee assistance program for additional information. It is
the responsibility of each employee to seek assistance before alcohol or drug problems lead to
performance problems.

B R B e Drug and Acohol Free Workplace - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

1027.5 WORK RESTRICTIONS

If a member informs a supervisor that the member has consumed any alcohol, drug, or medication
that could interfere with a safe and efficient job performance, the member may be required to
obtain clearance from a physician before continuing to work.

If the supervisor reasonably believes, based on objective facts, that a member is impaired by the
consumption of alcohol or other drugs, the supervisor shall prevent the member from continuing
work and request that a Captain respond to the location of the impaired member. The Captain shall
ensure the member is transported to a safe location and that the continuity of district operations
is maintained.

1027.6 REQUESTING SCREENING TESTS
A supervisor or Captain may request that an employee submit to a screening test under any of

the following circumstances:

(@) The supervisor or Captain reasonably believes, based upon objective facts, that the
employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs that are impairing the employee's
ability to perform duties safely and efficiently.

(b) During the performance of duties, the employee drives a motor vehicle and becomes
involved in an incident that results in bodily injury to the employee or another person
or substantial damage to property.

1027.6.1 CAPTAIN RESPONSIBILITY
The Captain shall ensure written records are prepared documenting the specific facts that led to
the decision to request the test, and shall inform the employee in writing of the following:

(@) The test will be given to detect either alcohol or drugs, or both.

(b) The result of the test is not admissible in any criminal proceeding against the
employee.

(c) The employee may refuse the test, but refusal may result in dismissal or other
disciplinary action.
1027.6.2 SCREENING TEST DISPOSITION
Employees may be subject to disciplinary action if they:
(@) Fall or refuse to submit to a screening test as requested.

(b) After taking a screening test that indicates the presence of a controlled substance, fall
to provide proof, within 72 hours after being requested, that they took the controlled
substance as directed, pursuant to a current and lawful prescription issued in their
name.

(c) Violate any provisions of this policy.

B R BT e Drug and Akcohol Free Workplace -2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

1027.7 MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

Members shall come to work in an appropriate mental and physical condition. Members
are prohibited from purchasing, manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing, or using
controlled substances or alcohol on district premises or on district time (41 USC § 8103). Members
shall notify the Fire Chief when they have reason to believe that alcohol or controlled substances
are in physical possession or located on District premises. The District has the right to search all
lockers, living quarters and items brought onto District property. A member shall not be physically
searched without prior consent and in the presence of an independent witness.

Members shall notify a supervisor immediately if they observe behavior or other evidence they
believe demonstrates that a fellow member poses a risk to the health and safety of the member
or others due to drug or alcohol use.

Members are required to notify theirimmediate supervisors of any criminal drug statute conviction
for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction (41 USC
§ 8103).

1027.7.1 EXCLUSIONS
The lawful possession or use of prescribed medications or over-the-counter remedies is excluded

from this prohibition.

The lawful possession or use of alcohol by citizens or off-duty members on District property during
a sanctioned community event, is also excluded from this prohibition.

1027.8 CONFIDENTIALITY

The District recognizes the confidentiality and privacy due to its members. Disclosure of any
information relating to substance abuse treatment, except on a need-to-know basis, shall only be
with the express written consent of the member involved or pursuant to lawful process.

The written results of any screening tests and all documents generated by the employee
assistance program are considered confidential medical records and shall be maintained
separately from the employee’s other personnel files.

1027.9 COMPLIANCE WITH THE DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT

No later than 30 days following notice of any drug statute conviction for a violation occurring
in the workplace involving a member, the District will take appropriate disciplinary action, up to
and including dismissal and/or requiring the member to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program (41 USC § 8104).

B AR B e Drug and AcoholFree Workplace -3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Attendance and Reporting Illlness or Injury

1051.1 PURPOSE

To promote a safe and healthy work environment through a collaborative effort of all members.
Due to the nature of the activities associated with emergency services, it is important members
make every effort to stay fit and the District actively supports that effort. In the event that an
injury or iliness does occur, this policy sets forth the member's responsibilities and the District's
expectations.

1051.2 SAFE WORKPLACE

The Mosquito Fire Protection District (MFPD) has taken precautions, implemented policy, rules
and regulations and training in an effort to provide as safe a working environment as possible. It
is incumbent that members actively participate in identifying hazards, following safety precautions
and reporting unsafe conditions or practices to the Chief (or a Board Member in the Chief's
absence). They are also encouraged to take action and rectify hazardous or unsafe conditions,
if they are able, as soon as reasonable. The Chief, upon being informed of a hazard or unsafe
condition, is expected to initiate corrective action as appropriate.

1051.3 REQUIREMENTS OF DUTY
Members shall report for duty physically and mentally fit to perform their duties. They shall be
properly equipped and cognizant of information required for the proper performance of duty.

All members must meet the requirements of their positions which include (but is not limited to)
ensuring that established work schedules are fulfilled. The shift schedule shall be produced by the
Chief one month in advance, with input by eligible members of their availability to cover stipend
shifts. Each member shall then verify and commit to the schedule in writing, directly to the Chief. ,

Members are subject to Emergency Recall, or Mandatory Holdover in situations of extreme
emergency. This includes Strike/Task Force Team deployment or any other event that directly
impacts emergency operations in the Fire District. With the exception of volunteers, employed
members understand that Emergency Recall and/or Mandatory Holdover supersedes all external
secondary employment positions. Volunteer members are encouraged to make a 'best effort' to
likewise comply with Recall/Holdover orders if possible. That failure to comply with Emergency
Recall, or Mandatory Holdover may subject the member to disciplinary actions, in accordance to
the SB220, Firefighter Bill of Rights

1051.4 REPORTING INABILITY TO WORK

Members will not be absent from duty without proper permission or leave, except when unable to
report for duty at the assigned time due to sickness or injury. An anticipated absence or tardiness
is to be reported to the Chief as soon as circumstances permit, prior to the assigned duty start
time. The provisions of the Compensation and Benefits Policy (Policy 1048) shall apply.

&ﬂg?ﬁ?ﬁ%@ﬁwm‘ﬁfﬁ” ’\%’55% Lf% Efggég;i‘:‘ig’s%ismct Attendance and Reporting lliness or Injury - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Attendance and Reporting lliness or Injury

1051.5 SUBMISSION / PREPARATION OF TIMECARDS

1.

The timecard is an official document requesting payment of salary and when endorsed
by the member and approved by the Chief it becomes an official pay document of the
District. After submission by the member, alterations shall not be made which would
cause a change in the pay unless authorized by the Chief.

All paid members receiving monetary compensation from the District shall submit a
single timecard covering each 2 week pay period as designated by the County.

The timecard document shall be considered a Fiscal Document and retained in district
files according to the Records Retention Policy (Policy 804).

Members shall prepare their own timecard to report hours worked or leave taken and
submit them for approval on or before the last day of the pay period. To meet payroll
requirements, the Chief (or designee) may prepare a timecard for a member who, due
to unexpected absence, was unable to complete their own timecard.

Whenever it is known in advance that leave will be taken, members shall complete the
required time card entries prior to leaving work on their last regular duty day.

1051.6 WORK-RELATED INJURIES

District related work injuries represent a significant impact on the member, their family, their
coworkers and the District. It is important that the member reports and documents the injury,
receives prompt and appropriate medical care (when needed) and understands the District's
expectations when they are absent due to a work-related injury.

1.

Minor Injury: A member is required to report even a minor work related injury that
does not require immediate medical treatment at a medical facility and does not result
in any time off work, and shall document the injury by a memao to the Chief. The memo
shall include the date/time/nature of the injury AND a description of how the injury
occurred.

Serious Injury: A member who suffers a serious injury which requires immediate
medical treatment and/or results in work time off, shall document the injury utilizing
the District's Workers Compensation claim form which may be obtained from
Administration.

(@) The member will seek medical treatment at their personal care provider's office
when appropriate or closest "Rapid Care" type facility or hospital as needed
dependent upon the type of injury and time of day.

(b)  While a member is off work and receiving Workers Compensation benefits, they
shall be available for and go to all scheduled medical appointments, maintain
positive and frequent contact with their doctor, the Workers Compensation
Adjuster if one is assigned to their claim and the Chief in an effort to facilitate
prompt and appropriate care.

The member shall abide by the limitations their doctor has set for them while they are
working or off duty.

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%’55% Iﬁ% Efgig;i‘:‘ig’s%ismm Attendance and Reporting lliness or Injury - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Attendance and Reporting lliness or Injury

4.  The member shall call the Chief (or designee) no later than 7 days after reporting a
work related injury to report their progress and seek assistance if needed. The member
shall also, at that time, unless their limitations preclude them from driving, schedule
a bi-weekly meeting with the Chief (or designee) to keep the District abreast of their
progress and enable the District to plan for their return.

1051.7 NON-WORK-RELATED INJURIES

A member must notify their supervisor of their inability to work due to non-work-related injury at
or before the start of their regular shift. This will be done by a phone call but if that's not practical
or possible, an email will satisfy this responsibility.

1. A member off work because of a non-work-related injury or illness for a period that
exceeds 1 work week, shall, as soon as practical, initiate a meeting with the Chief
(or designee) to discuss their condition and expected return to work date. This is
necessary to permit the District to plan future staffing needs.

2. Compensation for the member during a non-work-related illness or injury absence is
specified in the Compensation and Benefits Policy (Policy 1048)

1051.8 RETURN TO DUTY

Before returning to full duty, a member off work for a period exceeding 1 work week because of an
injury or iliness, either work-related or non-work-related, shall provide the District with a statement
from a medical doctor specifically stating that the employee is able to perform the duties listed in
the job description for that member and is fit to return to duty.

e T L Atendance and Reporing iness or iy -3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description - Board Clerk and Administrative
Assistant

1054.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
To establish the position of District Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant to the Fire Chief and

define the Board's performance expectations of the person occupying that position.

1054.2 POLICY

The position of District Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant to the Fire Chief is established by
the Mosquito Fire Protection District (MFPD) Board of Directors as a Part-Time Hourly Position.
The positions may be performed by two employees or combined with one employee. The District
Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant to the Fire Chief shall operate under the general direction
of the Chief.However, when performing duties supporting the Board, the District Board Clerk and
Administrative Assistant to the Fire Chief shall take direction from the Board President.

1054.3 ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

This job description is intended to convey information essential to understanding the scope of
the position; it is not intended to be an exhaustive list of skills, efforts, duties, responsibilities or
working conditions associated with the position.

1. Attend Board and Committee meetings; record and maintain the official public and closed
session proceedings of the District Board of Directors; prepare and maintain the official
minutes of all meetings; maintain policy manual, resolutions, ordinances, and other District
documents; respond to questions to clarify actions and agenda items.

2. Establish, publish, and provide legal notice of all Board and Committee meeting agendas,
as required by law, under the direction of the Board President, the Fire Chief or designee
and individual Committee Chairs. Maintain email distribution list of Directors and constituents
and distribute board agendas and information, as appropriate.

3. Plan and coordinate necessary preparations and support requirements for all Board, Fire
Chief and Committee meetings. Schedule and coordinate facility usage.

4.Respond to inquiries, requests, and concerns of the public, media, public agencies, and
District personnel relative to Board matters, with notification to the fire Chief.

5. Respond to California Public Records Act Requests in compliance with state or federal
law in conjunction with District General Council.

6. As the District's Custodian of Records, direct and lead the District's records management
function; participate in records policy development and long range planning; publicize
Administrative Policies and guidelines governing records retention, scanning and disposition

MR £06(26/2025025 Bage, 52 RiyhR&Reserved. Job Description - Board Clerk and
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District Administrative Assistant - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description - Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant

for District use; supervise the maintenance, scanning, retrieval and disposal of records;
participate in the selection of an electronic document management system; establish indexing
standards and other guidelines for use of the system.

7. Conduct independent research and compile information as requested by the collective
action of the Board, Board President, Committee Chairs, individual Directors, or the Fire
Chief.

8. In conjunction with the Fire Chief. represent, formulate, and follow up with District
personnel on requests by Directors or the Fire Chief for District information required for
governing the District.

9. Inform the Fire Chief of Board priorities requiring action; maintain individual director
communications with the Fire Chief on matters of District and Board business.

10. Promote a harmonious and effective working relationship with the members of the Board
of Directors, Fire Chief, District personnel, members of the public, and personnel from other
agencies.

11. Receive claims against the District and transmit to Board of Director action. Receive and
open bids for District services and asset acquisitions and certify timely submission.

12. Coordinate District election proceedings with the El Dorado County Voters Registration
and Elections Department. Prepare required election resolutions for adoption by the
Board.Process Board vacancies and file Statement of Facts in accordance with State statute.

13. Attest all District Resolutions, Ordinances, and minutes; certify public proceedings and
other District documents as required.

14. Administer the District's Conflict of Interest Code and act as filing officer for Statements
of Economic Interest filings of the Board of Directors and designated staff.

15. Inform elected officials of their obligations under AB 1234 and maintain a tracking system
for Ethics Training Certificates.

16. Prepare Resolutions of Commendation for Board adoption.
17. Administer Oath of Office to newly elected Board Directors.

18. Arrange appointments, meetings, and travel of all Board Directors, Fire Chief and District
personnel.

B AR B e Job Descrption - Board Clerc and

Administrative Assistant - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description - Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant

19. Provide small project development and management, schedule equipment repairs, and
purchase station equipment/supplies and Personal Protective Equipment.

20. Assist with application and administer of grants and external funding.
21. Maintain fuel billing, tracking and reimbursements.

22. Participates in budget preparation and administration; prepares cost estimates for budget
recommendation and submits justifications for budget items;

23. Maintain and prepare account payable and receivable, petty cash and Cal-Card account,
QuickBooks ledger and prepare bank deposit. Monitors and controls expenditures; tracks
and processes invoices for payments.

25. Prepare and submit parcel tax and special assessment billing to county and maintain
development fee account.

26. Coordinate and assist with annual audit, research and resolve accounting discrepancies
and complex accounting issues

27. Prepare, invoice and distribute payments for strike team assignments.

1054.4 PERSONAL QUALITIES

The highest level of loyalty, integrity, judgment, confidentiality, discretion, tact, flexibility to working
schedule, and effective response to stressful conditions. Must be able to work in a fast paced,
changing political environment.

1054.5 KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES
Knowledge of:

1. Excellent English usage, including grammar, spelling, and letter composition.

2. Modern office equipment, methods and procedures, including complex computer
applications, networking and troubleshooting.

3. California laws pertaining to public agency governing boards and special districts, freedom
of information requests, public elections, Public Records Act, Brown Act requirements, Fair

Political Practices Commission regulations and conflict of interest statements.

4. Principles of public relations and communications.

B AR B e Job Descrption - Board Cler and

Administrative Assistant - 3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description - Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant

5. Principles and practices of records management, including records retention policies and
laws and electronic management systems.

Ability to:

1. Record, summarize, and maintain custody of the official, complex, and extensive records
of public agency governing board meetings.

2. Plan, organize, and legally notice public agency meeting agendas in accordance with
State law.

3. Understand, interpret, and apply District policies/procedures, election laws, freedom of
information regulations, and laws applicable to public agency governing boards.

4. Establish functional priorities appropriate to the goals and objectives of the Fire Chief and
the Board of Directors.

5. Establish and maintain harmonious and effective working relationships with a wide variety
of people that include publicly elected officials, all levels of District management, District
employees, outside public agencies, media, and the general public.

6. Create and maintain spreadsheets and generate custom reports. Operate computer word
processing, scanning, and related software.

7. Conduct independent research of complex issues for preparation of concise reports with
recommendations.

8. Maintain confidentiality of sensitive information and records.
9. Work independently under stressful and flexible conditions in the absence of supervision.

10. Respond to wide variety of support requests of five elected public officials, Fire Chief
and Committee members.

1054.6 OTHER REQUIREMENTS
1. Complete District approved Confidentiality Agreement

1054.7 PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS

Maintain physical ability to meet position tasks and responsibilities. Physical abilities must
commensurate with the essential functions of the position. Reasonable accommodation can be
made to enable people with disabilities to perform the described essential functions of the position.

B R B e Job Descrption - Board Clerc and

Administrative Assistant - 4



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description - Board Clerk and Administrative Assistant

1054.8 LICENSE

Possession of and ability to maintain a current valid California Driver's License, Class C, is a
condition of employment

B AR B e Job Descrption - Board Cler and

Administrative Assistant - 5



Policy Mosquito Fire Protection District

1 108 Policy Manual

Use of District Facilities and Grounds

1108.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
To establish a process for permitting the use of District facilities and grounds by persons or
organizations other than District staff or the Board of Directors.

1108.2 POLICY

The District recognizes that its facilities and grounds are both a critical fire service resource and
focal point for the community. As such, there will be times when non-District use is allowed if
managed within the direction established below.

1108.3 REQUEST OF USE

An organization, group or individual desiring to use the District facilities or grounds must make
their request to the Chief using the "Facilities and Grounds Usage Request" form. It is strongly
recommended that the request be submitted at least ten (10) calendar days before the proposed
usage. The Chief may approve the request providing that the requirements of 1108.4 have been
met.

Request Limitations

(@) While every effort will be made to accommodate any request received, District related
activities will take precedence over all other requests.

(b) Upon appeal of a denied request, the District's Board of Directors retains the authority
to approve or reject any use request.

(c) No alcoholic beverage may be sold within District facilities or grounds.

1108.4 FEES AND INSURANCE
A facilities and grounds user may be required to pay a nominal fee to offset the cost of any services
rendered by the District or its members.

Prior to receiving approval, the requesting party shall submit (or have on file with the District)
evidence of proper and sufficient liability insurance coverage for the proposed usage activity. This
insurance requirement may be waived for small, occasional use by the community.

For all usage requests, a "Hold Harmless and Indemnify" document must be included.

1108.5 OVERNIGHT SLEEPING ACCOMMODATIONS

In general, facilities and grounds shall not be used by non-District members as an overnight
sleeping facility. Exceptions may be allowed under extraordinary circumstances and with the prior
approval of the Chief.

&ﬁg?ﬁ?ﬁ%@ﬁwm‘ﬁfﬁ” ’\%’55% é\i Efggég&zg’%imict Use of District Facilities and Grounds - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Use of District Facilities and Grounds

1108.6 OVERNIGHT PARKING

With prior approval of the Chief, the unpaved parking areas may be used for the temporary
overnight parking of equipment or vehicles owned by non-District members. Typically these
situations involve vehicles owned by government/public agencies or private businesses

performing work in the District.

The requesting party shall provide emergency contact information for a person who can be
reached and will respond to the station immediately should there be a need to do so regarding
the parked equipment.

The District assumes no responsibility or liability for the equipment or vehicles parked on their
grounds.

&ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁl@ﬁ%’ ’\%’55% .5#_5 Eﬁgg&?@’%mm Use of District Facilities and Grounds - 2



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 103 Policy Manual
Author: William Buhnerkempe
Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Several changes were made on Page 3 of this policy by the Lexipol Company, to update Health
and Safety Code Sections, and to change some verbiage. You can see what was in the policy that was
previously approved by the Board, that is being removed by Lexipol in RED. In BLUE is the language
recommended by Lexipol. In GREEN you will see what | believe needs to be inserted. This is often a
replacement because it fits better for this Department.

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes, and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 59 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

103 Policy Manual

Policy Manual

103.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Policy Manual of the Mosquito Fire Protection District is hereby established and shall be
referred to as the "Policy Manual." The Policy Manual is a statement of the current policies, rules,
and guidelines of this district. All district members are expected to conform to the provisions of
this Policy Manual. All prior and existing policies, manuals, orders, and regulations that are in
conflict with this Policy Manual are revoked, except to the extent that portions of the existing
policies, manuals, orders, and other regulations that have not been included herein shall remain
in effect where they do not conflict with the provisions of this Policy Manual.

103.2 POLICY

Except where otherwise expressly stated, the provisions of this Policy Manual shall be considered
guidelines. It is recognized that fire and rescue work is not always predictable, and circumstances
may arise that warrant departure from these guidelines.

It is intended that the provisions of this manual be viewed using an objective standard, taking into
consideration the sound discretion entrusted to the members of this district under the
circumstances reasonably available at the time of any incident.

103.2.1 DISCLAIMER

The provisions contained in the Policy Manual are not intended to create an employment contract,
nor any employment rights or entitlements. The policies contained within this manual are for the
internal use of the Mosquito Fire Protection District and shall not be construed to create a higher
standard or duty of care for civil or criminal liability against the District, its officials, or members.
Violations of any provision of any policy contained within this manual shall only form the basis for
administrative action, training, or discipline. The Mosquito Fire Protection District reserves the
right to revise any policy content, in whole or in part.

103.2.2 SEVERABILITY

In the event that any term or provision of this Policy Manual is declared illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable by any court or any federal or state government agency, the remaining terms and
provisions that are not affected shall remain in full force and effect. If any provision of the Policy
Manual is found to be in conflict with a local, state, or federal law, District policy, or collective
bargaining agreement, such law, District policy, or collective bargaining agreement shall take
precedence over that provision of the Policy Manual.

In the event that any of the terms or provisions of the Policy Manual are determined to conflict
with any portion of a collective bargaining agreement, the District will seek to resolve the conflict.
103.3 RESPONSIBILITIES

Rnp LG 26 SR PURIA0 LRighls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Policy Manual - 1

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Policy Manual

The responsibility for the contents of this Policy Manual rests with the Fire Chief. Since it is not
practical for the Fire Chief to prepare and maintain the Policy Manual, the following delegations
have been made:

103.3.1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall be considered the ultimate authority for the adoption of administrative,
personnel management and non-operational provisions of this manual and shall continue to issue,
as needed, directives that shall modify those provisions of the manual to which they pertain. Any
directive so issued shall remain in effect until such time as they may be permanently incorporated
into the manual.

103.3.2 FIRE CHIEF

The Fire Chief shall be considered the ultimate authority for the adoption of operational (fire,
emergency response) provisions of this manual, including the Procedures Manual and shall
continue to issue, as needed, directives that shall modify those provisions of the manual to which
they pertain. Any directive so issued shall remain in effect until such time as they may be
permanently incorporated into the manual.

103.3.3 STAFF
Staff shall consist of the following:

. Fire Chief

. Assistant Chief

. Battalion Chief

. Captains (Paid and Volunteer)

Staff shall review all recommendations regarding proposed operational changes to the manual
and make recommendations to the Fire Chief on final manual changes.

103.3.4 OTHER PERSONNEL
Any member suggesting revision of the contents of the Policy Manual shall forward the suggestion
through the chain of command, in writing, to his/her supervisor.

103.4 FORMATTING CONVENTIONS FOR THE POLICY MANUAL
The purpose of this section is to provide examples of abbreviations and definitions used in this
manual.

103.4.1 ACCEPTABLE ABBREVIATIONS
The following abbreviations are acceptable substitutions in the manual:

. Policy Manual sections may be abbreviated as “Section 106.4” or “§ 106.4.”

103.4.2 DEFINITIONS
The following words and terms shall have these assigned meanings, unless it is apparent from
the content that they have a different meaning:

RRnp LG 26 SR PURIARALRIghls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Policy Manual - 2

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Policy Manual
Adult - Any person 18 years of age or older.

District - The District of Mosquito Fire Protection District.

Civilian - Members and volunteers who are not sworn employees.
District/MQT - The Mosquito Fire Protection District.

Employee - Any person employed by the District.

Fire Code - The 2018- current edition of the International Fire Code (IFC) (2019-Califernia—Fire
Code—Title24,Part-9)-as adopted by the State of California and the incorporated California
amendments (Health and Safety Code § 18916; Health and Safety Code § 18928).

Firefighter/Sworn, appointed, or elected - Those members, regardless of rank, who perform
fire suppression duties as part of their primary duties as sworn, appointed, or elected members
of the Mosquito Fire Protection District.

Manual - The Mosquito Fire Protection District Policy Manual.

May - Indicates a permissive, discretionary, or conditional action.

Member - Any person employed or appointed by the Mosquito Fire Protection District, including:
. Full- and part-time employees
. Sworn, appointed, or elected firefighters

. Volunteer- Reserve Volunteer firefighters

. Civilian employees
. Suppert-Group-and-CERTvelunteers-Support Group and CERT volunteers

J Volunteers

On-duty - Member status during the period when hefshe- the member is actually engaged in the
performance of histher-assigned duties.

Order - A written or verbal instruction issued by a superior.
Rank - The job classification title held by a firefighter.
Shall or will - Indicates a mandatory action.

Should - Indicates a generally required or expected action, absent a rational basis for failing to
conform.

Supervisor - A person in a position of authority regarding hiring, transfer, suspension, promotion,
discharge, assignment, reward, or discipline of other district members, directing the work of other
members, or having the authority to adjust grievances. The supervisory exercise of authority may
not be merely routine or clerical in nature but requires the use of independent judgment.

Rnp LG 26 SR PRI Righls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Policy Manual - 3

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Policy Manual

The term "supervisor' may also include any person (e.g., firefighter-in-charge, lead, or senior
worker) given responsibility for the direction of the work of others without regard to a formal job
title, rank, or compensation.

103.5 DISTRIBUTION OF THE POLICY MANUAL
A copy of the Policy Manual shall be located in the Station 75 front admin office:

An electronic version of the Policy Manual will be made available on the district network for access
by all employees. The electronic version will be limited to viewing and printing specific chapters
or sections. No changes shall be made to the electronic version without authorization from the
Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

103.6 POLICY MANUAL ACCEPTANCE

As a condition of employment, all members are required to read and obtain necessary clarification
of this Policy Manual. All are required to sign a statement of receipt acknowledging that they have
received a copy or have been provided access to the Policy Manual and understand that they are
responsible to read and become familiar with its content.

103.7 REVISIONS TO POLICIES

All revisions to the Policy Manual will be provided to each member on or before the date the policy
becomes effective. Each member will be required to acknowledge that they have reviewed the
revisions and shall seek clarification from an appropriate supervisor as needed.

Members are responsible for keeping informed of all Policy Manual revisions.

Each Division Officer will ensure that members under their command are aware of any Policy
Manual revision.

All district members suggesting revision of the contents of the Policy Manual shall forward their
written suggestions to their supervisors, who will consider the recommendations and forward them
to the command staff as appropriate.

103.8 REVIEW AND MAINTENANCE OF POLICIES

To ensure that policies remain viable and applicable to an ever changing organization, all policies
must be reviewed by the District at least once every 2 years. The Policy Review and Revision
Table located at the front of the Policy Manual, shall be used as the tracking document of record.

Rnp LG 26 SR PRI RIghls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Policy Manual - 4

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 601 Automated External Defibrillator Training
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Several changes were made to this policy by the Lexipol Company. You can see what was in
the policy that was previously approved by the Board, that is being removed by Lexipol in RED. In
BLUE is the language recommended by Lexipol. In GREEN you will see what | believe needs to be
inserted. (Replacing Training Officer with Fire Chief or their designee, because it fits better for this
Department.)

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.

2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes, and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 64 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

60 1 Policy Manual

Automated External Defibrillator Training

601.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to establish the training requirements for members to maintain the

current and valid certificate that is required to utilize a-Bistrict-owned;— an Automated External
Defibrillator (AED) (22 CCR 1660617 100027.01 et seq.).

601.1.1 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

Automated External Defibrillator (AED) - An external defibrillator capable of cardiac rhythm
analysis that will charge and deliver a shock either automatically or by user interaction after
electronically detecting and assessing ventricular fibrillation or rapid ventricular tachycardia (22
CCR 100005 100025.01).

Public Safety AED Service Provider - An agency or organization that is responsible for, and is
approved to operate, an AED (22 CCR 100006-&-100018 100025.07).

601.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District that all members identified as Firefighters or
Support Group/CERT, whose duties include the use of an AED shall receive training and
certification within one year of appointment. Recertification training will be completed in two-year
intervals in accordance with instructional providers requirements to maintain the current and valid
certificate that is required to utilize an AED.

All personnel will be properly trained and successfully demonstrate knowledge of the
Manufacture's recommendations for use and maintenance of all District owned AEDs.

601.3 GUIDELINES
AED training shall be included in the initial First-Add- first aid and CPR course and comply with the
training standards set forth in 22 CCR 100017-&-100018 100027.01.

In order to be authorized to utilize a-District-owned- the defibrillator, members- an individual shall
passawrittenand i Q _l.._=- nn=-=-e a\V avlal -v.‘ a . a¥a ge =---

who-shall-also-approve-a iring-programs-and-instructo eguired-for-course-completion skills

examination with a pre-established standard. The skills test measures the ability to evaluate and
manage the conditions presented during incidents where an AED may be used.

All AED training provided by the District shall be approved and monitored by the District EMS
authority, which shall also approve any written and skills examinations required for course
completion. It shall also approve AED instructors and designate Public Safety AED Service
Providers.

REBIgNE LsKinnt bhG202 a%%s Il Rights Reserved. Automated External Defibrillator Training - 1



Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District ***DRAFT***

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Automated External Defibrillator Training

601.4 TRAINING RECORDS

The Fire-Chief-or-his-designee,- Training Officer Fire Chief or their designee,- shall be responsible
for maintaining records of all AED training provided to members. Records should include -but are
not limited to:

(&) The dates of the training sessions.
(b) Alist of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.
(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers, and qualifications of the persons conducting the
training.

The Fire-Chiefor-his-desighee;- Training Officer Fire Chief or their designee,-should maintain the
training records in accordance with established records retention schedules.

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 66 of 128



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/06/08, All Rights Reserved. Automated External Defibrillator Training - 2

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District ***DRAFT***

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 67 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 609 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability (HIPPA) Training
Author: William Buhnerkempe
Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

On Page 2 of policy, replacing “Training Officer’ with ‘Fire Chief or their designee’, because it
fits better for this Department.

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes, and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 68 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

609 Policy Manual

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) Training

609.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure all members receive proper training in recognizing and
handling Protected Health Information (PHI), as set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) and its implementing regulations (42 USC § 201 and 45 CFR 164.530).

609.1.1 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

Health information - Information, whether oral or recorded in any form or medium, that is created
or received by a health care provider, health plan or employer and relates to a person’s past,
present or future physical or mental health or condition, or past, present or future payment for the
provision of health care (45 CFR 160.103).

Individually identifiable health information - Health information, including demographic
information, created or received by a covered entity or employer that relates an individual’s past,
present or future physical or mental health or condition, the provision of health care to an
individual, or the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual,
that can either identify the individual or provide a reasonable basis to believe the information can
be used to identify the individual (45 CFR 160).

Protected Health Information (PHI) - Individually identifiable health information that is created
or received by a covered entity or employer. Information is protected whether it is in writing, in an
electronic medium or is communicated orally (45 CFR 160).

609.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to provide HIPAA privacy training to all
members as necessary and appropriate for their duties, and to apply appropriate sanctions
against members who violate the privacy policies and procedures (45 CFR 164.530(b) and 45
CFR 164.530(e)).

It is also the policy of the District that no member shall be retaliated or discriminated against for
filing a complaint about violations of the HIPAA regulations (45 CFR 164.530(Q)).

609.3 TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

To ensure confidentiality and compliance with the HIPAA regulations, the District shall provide
training to all members likely to have access to PHI. The training shall be completed for all newly
hired members prior to them being allowed access to PHI. Training for all current members shall
also occur any time material changes are made to the district’s privacy policies and procedures.

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 69 of 128



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/06/06, All Rights Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District Act (HIPAA) Training - 1

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training

The TFraining-Officer Fire Chief or their designee shall be responsible for establishing a periodic
schedule for retraining and a method of ensuring that all members acknowledge receipt of all
HIPAA training (45 CFR 164.530(b)).

Training should include a review of the:
(a) District’s statutory obligations imposed by HIPAA.

(b) Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy Policy , including a thorough treatment
of the security procedures the District uses to protect written and electronic health
information.

(c) Methods and procedures to be used during the collection of PHI.

(d) HIPAA-imposed statutory limitations on the dissemination of PHI to the family
members of patients.

(e) Proper procedures when responding to media requests for information regarding
incidents at which the District provided medical services.

()  Procedures for the secure destruction of written instruments containing PHI, including
handwritten field notes, pre-hospital care records or other documents containing PHI.

(g) Approved method for transferring PHI to receiving hospitals or other receiving medical
facilities.

(h)  Photography and Electronic Imaging Policy as it pertains to PHI.

(i)  District’'s procedures for protecting employee health information.

609.4 TRAINING RECORDS
The Fraining-Bivision Fire Chief or their designee shall be responsible for maintaining the records
of all HIPAA-related training for all members for six years (45 CFR 164.530())).

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 70 of 128



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/06/06, All Rights Reserved. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District ***DRAFT***
Act (HIPAA) Training - 2

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 71 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 700 Use of District-Owned and Personal Property.
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

In 700.3 (e) - Replacing ‘supervisory’ with ‘Fire Chief’, because it fits better for this
Department.

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 72 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

700 Policy Manual

Use of District-Owned and Personal Property

700.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the care and maintenance of district property
entrusted to district members and the return of district property at the end of employment or
affiliation with the District. This policy also provides guidelines for members to claim damage to
or loss of personal property used in an occupational capacity.

700.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to issue equipment to members for the
purpose of performing their assigned duties. Members shall be responsible for the safekeeping,
serviceable condition, proper care, use and request for replacement of all district property issued
or entrusted to their care. A member’s intentional or negligent abuse or misuse of district property
may lead to discipline, including, but not limited to, the cost of repair or replacement of the
property, and up to and including termination.

700.3 PROCEDURE
The following procedures shall be in effect regarding district property issued to members:

(@) Members shall promptly report via the chain of command any loss, damage or
unserviceable condition of district-issued property or equipment assigned for member
use.

(b) The use of damaged or unserviceable district property should be discontinued as soon
as practicable and a supervisor notified so that the item may be replaced.

(c) No member should attempt to repair damaged or unserviceable district property
without supervisory approval.

(d) Use of district property should be limited to official purposes in the capacity for which
it was designed. Except when otherwise directed and/or required by circumstances,
district property shall only be used by the member to whom it was assigned.

(e) District property shall not be discarded, sold, traded, donated, destroyed or otherwise
disposed of without supervisery Fire Chief approval.

700.3.1 SURRENDERING DISTRICT PROPERTY UPON SEPARATION
Members who separate from the District shall return all district property, regardless of its condition.
The following guidelines shall apply:

(@) All district property, including keys, badges, identification cards, radios/pagers,
turnouts, electronic devices and any other miscellaneous equipment belonging to the
district , shall be returned to the District no later than the member's departure date or
as directed by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

(b) Amember who fails to return all district property in his/her possession may be required
to reimburse the District for the value of the property or may be subject to legal action
brought by the District.

AP LLEHPEb 5N A s

Use of District-Owned and Personal Property 1



Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Use of District-Owned and Personal Property

700.4 FILING CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY

Members are responsible for exercising reasonable care and caution to avoid damage to or loss
of personal property while on-duty. However, consistent with district rules, personal property that
is lost or damaged during the proper performance of a member's job duties may be replaced or
the cost reimbursed by the District when such loss or damage is not the result of intentional or
negligent abuse or misuse by the member.

Any claim for the replacement or cost reimbursement for damage to or loss of a member's
personal property must be submitted on the proper claim form to the member's immediate
supervisor.

The supervisor is responsible for reviewing the claim to assess whether the lost or damaged
property was reasonably required for the proper performance of the member's job duties. The
supervisor will make a determination as to whether reasonable care was taken to prevent loss or
damage and whether proper procedures were followed just prior to the occurrence of the loss or
damage. A supervisor may direct a member to submit additional details in a separate written
report, if needed.

If approved, the supervisor will forward the claim and related reports to the Fire Chief, who will
determine the appropriate reimbursement value of the property and will forward the claim for
payment to the proper entity.

700.4.1 COVERED PERSONAL PROPERTY

Property that is necessary in the performance of the member's job duties shall be considered a
covered item. The age and condition of the damaged or lost property shall be considered when
determining replacement or reimbursement value.

700.4.2 EXCLUDED PERSONAL PROPERTY ITEMS

Members are discouraged from wearing expensive jewelry or watches or bringing personal
property items to the workplace that may be damaged, lost or stolen. Personal property that is not
eligible for replacement or reimbursement includes:

(&) Any personal property that is lost or damaged directly or indirectly due to negligence
of the member.

(b) Personal computers, communication devices, cell phones, game consoles or any
other electronic devices that the member voluntarily brings to the workplace and that
are not required by the District for the performance of the member's duties.

(c) Any personal property used in place of district-issued property.

(d) Any jewelry, with the exception of watches, which shall not exceed a $100
reimbursement.

700.4.3 PERSONAL VEHICLES

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 74 of 128 o
Use of District-Owned and Personal Property 2



The District will not provide vehicle insurance coverage for members who use their personal
vehicles for district business. All members must rely on their personal vehicle insurance carrier
for

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Use of District-Owned and Personal Property

replacement or cost reimbursement of damage to or loss of a personal vehicle. Members using a
personal vehicle for district business shall have the minimum evidence of financial responsibility
required for that vehicle (Vehicle Code § 16056).

700.4.4 LOSS OR DAMAGE OF PROPERTY OF ANOTHER

Members intentionally or unintentionally may cause damage to the real or personal property of
another while performing their duties. Any member who damages or causes to be damaged any
real or personal property of another while performing any district function, regardless of
jurisdiction, shall report it as provided below:

(@) A verbal report shall be made to the member's immediate supervisor as soon as
practicable.

(b)  Awritten report shall be submitted before the member goes off-duty or within the time
frame directed by the supervisor to whom the verbal report was made.

700.4.5 DAMAGE BY PERSON OF ANOTHER AGENCY

If members of another jurisdiction cause damage to real or personal property belonging to the
District, it shall be the responsibility of the member present or the member responsible for the
property to make a verbal report to his/her immediate supervisor as soon as practicable. The
member shall submit a written report before going off-duty or as otherwise directed by the
supervisor.

All reports should be completed immediately after the incident or as soon as practicable if
extenuating circumstances delay the member's ability to complete the report.

All reports, including the supervisor's written report, shall promptly be forwarded to the Fire Chief.

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 75 of 128 o
Use of District-Owned and Personal Property 3



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 76 of 128 o
Use of District-Owned and Personal Property 4



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 709 Photography and Electronic Imaging.
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Several changes were made to this policy by the Lexipol Company. You can see what was in
the policy that was previously approved by the Board, that is being removed by Lexipol in RED. In
BLUE is the language recommended by Lexipol. In 709.4.1 (j) language was inserted that does not fit
with Department, so it is marked for removal. In GREEN you will see what | believe needs to be
inserted. (All photos taken should be forwarded to the Fire Chief as soon as practical.) Requiring this
helps keep the Chief in the Loop, and will force anyone taking photos with explaining the need to take
the pictures

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 77 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

709 Policy Manual

Photography And Electronic Imaging

709.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to authorize district members to utilize photography and electronic
imaging to document incidents while also protecting the privacy of citizens and ensuring district
compliance with the mandates of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

This policy establishes legal ownership of all photographs and electronic images collected by
district members, establishes the parameters for the types of incidents, subjects, and activities
that may be photographed or electronically imaged, and establishes restrictions on the use of
such photographs and electronic images.

This policy does not apply to media captured through the use of body-worn cameras (see the
Body-Worn Cameras Policy).

709.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to authorize members to utilize photography
and electronic imaging to document incidents and district activities that are subject to compliance
with specific regulations, conditions, restrictions, and guidelines.

The use of photography or electronic imaging of medical patients, injured victims, or other people
who are medically evaluated or treated by district members must also comply with the
requirements of HIPAA.

The Mosquito Fire Protection District shall respect the privacy rights established in the state and
federal constitutions.

709.3 OWNERSHIP AND COMMERCIAL USE OF PHOTOGRAPHS AND ELECTRONIC
IMAGES

All photographs and electronic images taken by district members while on-duty or acting in an
official capacity are the sole property of the District and may not be sold, transferred for
commercial use, bartered, or otherwise distributed for profit by any member of the District without
the express prior approval of the Fire Chief (17 USC § 201).

All photos taken should be forwarded to the Fire Chief as soon as practical.

709.4 AUTHORIZED USE OF PHOTOGRAPHY AND ELECTRONIC IMAGING

709.4.1 NON-INCIDENT EVENTS
Photography and electronic imaging may be utilized by district members for non-incident events,
including:

(a) Documentation of district training events, exercises, lectures, classes, or activities, and
all fire academy-related activities.

RS GaioR b SRO2PURYL07 AlRighls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Photography And Electronic Imaging - 1

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Photography And Electronic Imaging

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

(i)

()

709.4.2

Documentation of internal district events and activities, such as promotional
ceremonies, member recognition or award presentations, meetings, seminars,
workshops, and other activities involving district members.

Documentation of public events, such as safety seminars, fire station open house
events, Administration education events and activities, school safety presentations,
and club or service organization events.

Documentation of all district vehicles, apparatus, tools and equipment, facilities, and
other district-owned property.

Creating and maintaining a photo/image bank depicting all district members.

Documentation of all buildings, structures, facilities, infrastructure components,
landmarks, and recreational areas within the district's jurisdiction for later use in
disaster mitigation, recovery, and cost-recovery efforts.

To document any condition, activity, or event related to the district's code enforcement
responsibilities.

To document inspections, code compliance activities, or any other activity of
Administration.

Unless prohibited elsewhere in this policy, to document any district activity for future
use in training.

For any other purpose authorized by the Fire Chief-Captain—orany Division-Officer.

INCIDENT-RELATED EVENTS

Photography and electronic imaging may be utilized by district members at incident scenes,

including:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Documentation of the conditions on arrival and during suppression activities at any
fire incident.

Documentation of fire, smoke, water, structural collapse, or any other damage or
conditions resulting from any fire or fire-related event.

Documentation of people at the scene of a fire or a fire-related incident for the purpose
of future investigation.

Documentation of anything of evidentiary value found at a fire or incident scene where
any type of investigation may be initiated.

Documentation of the location, position, trauma, injuries, _or any other factor of
investigative interest related to deceased victims at a fire or fire-related incident or
other incidents.

RS GaioR b SRO2PURYLO78loRighls Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Photography And Electronic Imaging - 2

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



() Documentation of the condition of vehicles, apparatus, bicycles, or other items
involved in collisions, accidents, entrapments, or other rescue or medical events.

(g) Documentation of the extrication of trapped individuals in any rescue situation.

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Photography And Electronic Imaging

(h) Documentation of the cause, location, extent, severity, and nature of traumatic injuries
of patients at the scene. These images may be transferred to the receiving physician,
nurse, or other authorized representative who assumes medical care for the patient.

()  Documentation of all aspects of any incident involving hazardous materials.

() Documentation of severe weather events, including any damage, injuries, or fatalities
caused by such events.

(k) Documentation of any other event, situation, or activity as deemed appropriate and
necessary by the Incident Commander of any event.

709.5 PROHIBITED USE OF PHOTOGRAPHY OR ELECTRONIC IMAGING
District members are prohibited from using photography or electronic imaging except as permitted
in this policy.

Prohibited use of photography or electronic imaging shall include -but is not limited to:

(@) Photographs and/or electronic images may not be taken, transmitted, or used in
violation of any HIPAA regulation.

(b) Photographs and/or electronic images may not be taken, transmitted, or used for
personal purposes.

(c) Unless requested by the receiving hospital or controlling medical authority or deemed
necessary for the future treatment of the patient, no photographs or electronic images
should be taken inside a private residence during a non-traumatic medical aid
incident.

(d) Unless requested by the receiving hospital or controlling medical authority or deemed
necessary for the future treatment of the patient, no photographs or electronic images
should be taken of a minor (under 18 years of age) patient resulting from a medical
aid response.

(e) Unless requested by the receiving hospital or controlling medical authority or deemed
necessary for the future treatment of the patient, no photographs or electronic images
depicting patient genitalia or the exposed breasts of female patients should be taken
by district members.

()  Unless requested by the receiving hospital or controlling medical authority or deemed
necessary for the future treatment of the patient, no photograph or electronic image
should be taken of a patient being treated by district members if the person expresses
or indicates that he/she-dees- they do not wish to be photographed. In the event that

RS aioR b SRS PURYLOsIuRighEs Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Photography And Electronic Imaging - 3

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



the need arises to take a photograph or electronic image of a medical patient against
the patient's wishes, the medical need for taking the image will be explained to the
patient with a witness present. Details regarding the need for the photograph or
electronic image, the explanation provided to the patient, and the identity of the
witness present shall be included in a patient-carereport- Patient Care Report and/or
incident report for the response.

RSt aion b SRO2 PURYLOsAIRighEs Reserved. ***DRAFT*** Photography And Electronic Imaging - 4

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025
Title: Policy 710 Non-Official Use of District Property
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

710.2 Removing a-Bistrict-Officer and replacing it with the Fire Chief and removing
appropriate-District Officer and replacing it with the Fire Chief

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the

Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 82 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

7 1 O Policy Manual

Non-Official Use of District Property

710.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance on the non-official use of district property. District
property includes, but is not limited to, all portable pumps, chain saws, rescue saws, generators,
fire hoses, hose adapters, suction hoses, ladders, rescue equipment, small tools or any power
driven tools.

710.2 POLICY

The personal use of district property is not authorized. No equipment shall be loaned or used by
a member for any purpose other than official district business without the express prior approval
of a-District-Officer the Fire Chief.

Requests from water companies or other District agencies for hose adapters or other equipment
should be forwarded to the appropriate-District-Officer the Fire Chief for consideration.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 83 of 128



Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection
District

Non-Official Use of District Property - 1

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 84 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 803 Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Changes made by Lexipol on page 2, regarding body worn cameras not being part of Patient’s
medical records. (I do not think this will affect Department since fire fighters do not wear body
cameras.)

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 85 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

803 Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

803.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish appropriate administrative, technical, and physical
safeguards for patient medical records and to provide reasonable safeguards against prohibited
uses and disclosures of protected health information (PHI) in accordance with federal and state
law, to include the following:

. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) (42 USC § 201 et seq.)
. California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (CMIA) (Civil Code § 56 et seq.)
. Health and Safety Code § 1797.220
. Health and Safety Code § 1798

803.1.1 DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Health information - Any information, whether oral or recorded in any form or medium, that is
created or received by the District and relates to a person's past, present, or future physical or
mental health or condition, or past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to
a person (45 CFR 160.103).

Individually identifiable health information - Health information, including demographic
information, created or received by the District that relates to an individual's past, present, or future
physical or mental health or condition, the provision of health care to the individual, or the past,
present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual that can either identify
the individual or provide a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the
individual (45 CFR 160.103).

Limited data set - PHI that excludes the following direct identifiers of an individual or of relatives,
employers, or household members of the individual (45 CFR 164.514(e)):

. Names

o Postal address information, other than town or city, state, and ZIP code
. Telephone or fax numbers

. Email addresses

. Social Security numbers

. Medical record numbers

. Health plan beneficiary numbers

. Account numbers

o Certificate or license numbers

MR <06/26/2025025 Baige, 86 RiyhR&eserved. ***DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

. Vehicle identifiers and serial numbers, including license plate numbers
. Device identifiers and serial numbers

. Web Universal Resource Locators (URLS)

. Internet Protocol (IP) address numbers
. Biometric identifiers, including finger and voice prints
. Full-face photographic images and/or any comparable images

Patient medical records - District records or data containing any information identifying a
patient. However, media recorded by district body-worn cameras is for quality assessment and
improvement purposes, not patient care, and therefore is not part of a patient's medical records.

Protected health information (PHI) - Individually identifiable health information that is created
or received by the District. Information is protected whether it is in writing, in an electronic form,
or communicated orally (45 CFR 160.103).

Protected personal information (PPI) - Information that includes butis not limited to PHI, pictures
or other forms of voice or image recording, patient address, telephone numbers, Social Security
number, date of birth, age, or any other information that could be reasonably used to uniquely
identify the patient or that could result in identity theft if released for unauthorized purposes or to
unauthorized personnel.

803.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the District to reasonably safeguard PHI and comply with the HIPAA and the
implementing regulations through the use of policy and procedures, system access security and
passwords, and limited physical access to hard copy files (45 CFR 164.530(c)).

803.3 RESPONSIBILITIES
Members shall protect the security, confidentiality, and privacy of all patient medical records in
their custody at all times.

Possessing, releasing, or distributing PPI, including for unauthorized purposes, is prohibited and
may violate the HIPAA and/or other applicable laws. Members who have not received district
training on the proper handling of these records shall not access patient medical records.

Members with occupational access to patient medical records shall be trained in the proper
handling of PHI in accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)
Training Policy and shall reasonably ensure that no unauthorized person shall have access to PHI
without the valid authorization of the patient, except as provided by law (45 CFR 164.530(b); 45
CFR 164.512; Welfare and Institutions Code § 5328(24)).

803.4 PRIVACY OFFICER
The Fire Chief shall designate a privacy officer who is responsible for all matters relating to the
privacy of patient medical information, including PHI. The privacy officer shall (45 CFR 164.530):

&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ;‘é%@ﬁ?g’m%%? ’\%{35% .ﬁz Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy2-



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

(@) Identify who may have access to PPl and PHI.
(b)  Resolve complaints under the HIPAA.

(c) Mitigate to the extent practicable any harmful effects known to the District regarding
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of this policy or the HIPAA regulations.

(d) Ensure members are trained in the proper handling of PHI in accordance with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training Policy.

(e) Ensure technical and physical safeguards are implemented to maintain security and
confidentiality of PHI and to allow access to PHI only to those persons or software
programs that have been granted access rights.

803.5 PROCEDURE

Records containing PHI or PPI, including Pre-Hospital Care Reports (PCRs), shall be kept out of
view unless the report is being completed during an incident, during transfer of care, during input
of information into the National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS), or during processing or
review at Mosquito Fire Protection District facilities by authorized personnel (45 CFR 164.530(c)).

803.6 SECURITY
All patient records containing PHI or PPI shall be kept secure at all times whether the record is in
written, verbal, electronic, or any other visual or audible format (45 CFR 164.306(a)).

Documents provided by a patient or caregiver will receive the same level of confidentiality and
security as district records during the time district personnel retain possession of the documents.

No patient record, including documents and electronic images containing PHI, shall be visible to
the public.

803.6.1 ELECTRONIC PHI SECURITY

All computer workstations and servers within the District shall require appropriate security
measures, such as user identification and login passwords, to access electronic documents,
including electronic PHI (45 CFR 164.308(a)(5)).

Members with access to electronic data shall lock their workstations when left unattended and
shall shut down their workstations when leaving for the day to prevent unauthorized access to
electronic PHI (45 CFR 164.310; 45 CFR 164.312).

Remote access to district computer workstations requires that appropriate security measures be
provided for access to PHI (45 CFR 164.312).

PHI may be transmitted electronically, provided the transmission occurs through a secure process
that allows end-to-end authentication and the recipient is authorized to receive the information.
Electronic transmission consists of email, file transfer protocol, internet web posting, and any
configurable data stream. End-to-end authentication is accomplished when the electronic referral
does not leave a secure network environment and the recipient is known, or when encryption

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%{35% ﬁé Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacyé



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

and authentication measures are used between sender and recipient, thus verifying full receipt by
the recipient. Any electronic PHI traveling outside a secure network environment, via the internet,
requires encryption and authentication measures (45 CFR 164.312(e)).

803.6.2 HARD COPIES

Hard copies of PCRs shall be kept in a secured area when unattended by authorized personnel.
An area of the District is considered unattended when members are physically outside of the
area and unable to maintain record security. This includes but is not limited to breaks, lunch, and
meetings outside the District.

Hard copies of PCRs should be stored in a locked area whenever practicable for ease of record
retention and retrieval.

Patient records shall not be removed from the District without express authorization from the
Custodian of Records.

803.7 PHI RECORD REQUESTS
The following procedures apply to PHI record requests:

(@) Requests and subpoenas for copies of patient records shall be processed by the
Custodian of Records.

(b) The Custodian of Records or the authorized designee shall not release records
containing PHI without a properly completed authorization to release medical records
that is signed by the patient or legal representative of the patient.

1.  Verification that the person completing the authorization is the patient or the legal
representative of the patient shall be made with government-issued identification
and documentation (45 CFR 164.508(c)).

(c) Unless the request for records is from the patient or the parent of a minor patient, PHI
shall be redacted from the record. A photocopy of the record shall be distributed to
the requestor.

(d) Requests for records via a valid subpoena do not require that PHI be redacted.

(e) Fulfilled records requests shall be placed in a sealed envelope for release to the
requestor.

(H  Afull copy of the valid subpoena or authorization to release medical records form shall
be maintained in the file with the PCR.

803.7.1 PROHIBITED DISCLOSURES OF PHI AND PPI

The District shall not use or disclose PHI or PPI without authorization. Prohibited disclosures
include any form of communication, except as permitted in this policy, including but not limited
to (45 CFR 160.103):

(@) PHI or PPI contained in email or other forms of written communication.
(b) Sharing of PHI or PPI on any website, blog, or other form of social or public media.

(c) Verbal discussions.

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%{35% .ﬁé Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacyli



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

(d)

The use of any imaging device capable of capturing and storing still or moving images,
such as digital or other cameras, video cameras, cellular telephones with picture-
taking or video-recording capability, or any other device with picture-taking or video-
recording capability, while engaged in patient care, while at the scene of a medical
emergency or hospital, or at any time when such use could reasonably be expected
to result in the inappropriate capture of PHI or PPI.

803.7.2 PERMITTED DISCLOSURES OF PHI AND PPI
The Custodian of Records may release records containing PHI or PPI without authorization from
the patient under any of the following circumstances:

(@)

(b)

(€)
(d)

(e)

(f)
()

(h)

For the district’'s use to carry out treatment, payment, or health care operations (45
CFR 164.506)

Where the PHI is requested pursuant to a valid subpoena or court order (45 CFR
164.512(e))

Where the PHI is part of a limited data set (45 CFR 164.514(e))

Where the PHI is used for public health activities authorized by law, including when
the information is necessary to report child abuse or neglect (45 CFR 164.512(b))

Where the PHI is disclosed to a government authority because the person is believed
to be a victim of abuse, neglect, or domestic violence (45 CFR 164.512(c))

To law enforcement as provided in this policy (45 CFR 164.512(f))

Where the District believes that disclosure of the information is necessary to avert a
serious threat to the health or safety of a person or the public (45 CFR 164.512(j))

Where the PHI is required for workers' compensation purposes (45 CFR 164.512(1))

803.7.3 REQUIRED DISCLOSURES
The District must disclose PHI when:

(@)

(b)

The PHI is requested by and provided to the individual to whom the PHI belongs (45
CFR 164.502(a)(2)).

The information is required by the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services to
investigate compliance with HIPAA (45 CFR 164.502(a)(2)).

803.7.4 SUBPOENAS
Records containing PHI or PPI will be disclosed only if one of the following is present (45 CFR
164.512(e)(2)):

(@)

(b)

A court order or subpoena signed (or stamped) by a judge that requires no additional
assurances or notification to the individual whose records are requested.

A subpoena or discovery order signed by an attorney which requires additional proof
of service that written notification has been given to the individual whose records are
requested. In such a case, the subpoena or discovery order must be accompanied
by one of the following:

1. A qualified protective order.

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%{35% ._1% Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -

5



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

2. Anotice to consumer (Code of Civil Procedure § 1985.3) or a declaration by the
requesting party showing that reasonable efforts have been made to ensure that
notice has been provided to the individual whose records are being requested.

(@) No records relating to the person named in the notice will be produced
until the time to respond to the notice has lapsed and no objections to
the production of the materials requested have been made. If a notice to
consumer is not provided, the declaration must establish that:

1. Therequesting party has made a good faith effort to provide written
notice to the individual.

2.  The notice includes sufficient information about the litigation or
proceeding for which the PHI is requested to allow the individual to
raise an objection.

3. The time for the individual to raise objections to the court or tribunal
has elapsed.

4.  No objections were filed or all objections have been resolved.

(b) Inlieu of a declaration, records may be released if there is a court order or
a stipulation by the parties to the litigation that both (45 CFR 164.512(e)
(1)V)):

1. Prohibits the parties from using or disclosing the PHI for any purpose
other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information was
requested.

2. Requires the return to the District or destruction of the PHI (including
all copies made) at the end of the litigation or proceeding.
803.7.5 RELEASE OF PHI TO LAW ENFORCEMENT
The release of PHI to a law enforcement agency is permitted under the following circumstances:

(@ Inresponse to a law enforcement officer who completes the district's release of PHI
to law enforcement form and requires the PHI (45 CFR 164.512(f)(1)):

1. To report certain types of wounds or other physical injuries.

2. In compliance with a court order or court-ordered warrant, a subpoena or
summons, a grand jury subpoena, or an administrative request for which a
response is required by law.

(b) Inresponse to a law enforcement officer who completes the district's release of PHI
to law enforcement form for the purpose of identifying or locating a suspect, fugitive,
material witness, or missing person. In such a case, the District may only disclose the
following PHI (45 CFR 164.512(f)(2)):

1. Name and address
2. Date and place of birth

3. Social Security number

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%{35% .ﬁi Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacyé



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

ABO blood type and Rh factor
The character and extent of injuries
Date and time of treatment

Date and time of death, if applicable

© N o g &

A description of distinguishing physical characteristics

803.7.6 ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS FOR REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH CARE RECORDS

Records related to reproductive health records as defined by 45 CFR 160.103 are subject to
additional disclosure restrictions as provided in 45 CFR 164.502 and 45 CFR 164.509. Requests
that may include reproductive health care records should be evaluated by the Custodian of
Records in consultation with legal counsel before disclosure to ensure compliance with federal law.

803.8 INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS
The privacy officer is responsible for ensuring the District complies with all of the following rights
of patients:

(@) The right to request restrictions on certain uses and disclosures of PHI (45 CFR
164.522(a))

(b)  The right to receive their PHI confidentially (45 CFR 164.522(b))

(c) The right to inspect and copy their PHI (45 CFR 164.524)

(d)  The right to request amendments to their PHI (45 CFR 164.526)

(e) The right to receive an account of disclosures of PHI (45 CFR 164.528)
803.8.1 PHI AMENDMENT REQUESTS
Patients have the right to review their PHI records and, if necessary, request that amendments be
made. A patient must make a request in writing to have their medical record amended. Included

in the request must be the patient's account of the incident and what specific amendment is being
requested (45 CFR 164.526(b)(1)).

The privacy officer has the authority to deny the request for amendment where the PHI (45 CFR
164.526(a)(2)):

(&) Was not created by the District.

(b) Is not part of the designated record.

(c) Is not available for inspection by the requestor pursuant to 45 CFR 164.524.
(d) Is accurate and complete.

Within 60 days of receipt of the request for amendment, the privacy officer must provide the basis
for its denial in writing or, in the case that the request is approved, provide notice of approval (45
CFR 164.526(b)(2)).

&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ%@ﬁ@%@%ﬁ%’ ’\%{35% .ﬁ% Efgig&zgﬁf&mm *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy7-



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

The time for response may be extended for up to 30 days with a written statement to the requestor
identifying the reasons for the delay and the date by which the action will be completed (45 CFR
164.526(b)(2)).

&ﬂﬁéﬁ;‘é%@ﬁ?g’m %2%’” ’\%{55% .ﬁ% Efgig&zgﬁf&ﬂ“m *»**DRAFT***  Patient Medical Record Security and Privacyé



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 804 Record Retention
Author: William Buhnerkempe
Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:
Two changes.

1) Change Secretary to Administrative Assistant in two places.

2) 1 noticed in 609.4 Training Records for HIPPA Training must be kept for 6 years. This is
apparently something we missed in our prior list of items that must be kept. Therefore, I
added HIPPA Training to the retention list.

HIPPA-related Training for all members must be kept for 6 years.

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 94 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

804 Policy Manual

Record Retention

804.1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines, consistent with legal requirements, for the
retention and disposition of records, papers and documents in the possession of the Mosquito
Fire Protection District.

804.2 POLICY

This policy applies to "original" records, papers and documents. Non-original items (copies) may
be disposed of when they are of no further value to the district. Additionally, original items, which
are more than two (2) years old and required to be maintained for a longer period by statute, may
be copied to photographic or electronic media and then the original item destroyed.

804.3 AUTHORITY

Sections 60200-60203 of the California Government Code grants the legislative body of any
special district the power to dispose of records, papers and documents which are in the files of
the district.

804.4 DISPOSITION PROCEDURE

The Board, at their pleasure, shall direct the Seeretary Administrative Assistant to examine the
District's files and identify all records, papers and documents, which are candidates for destruction
based upon the retention schedule specified in this policy. The Seeretary Administrative Assistant
shall then prepare a resolution for Board adoption, which identifies, in general, the items to be
destroyed and authorizes their destruction.

804.5 PERSONNEL & TRAINING

District Employees - Current 5 Years
District Employees - Former On-going
Volunteers - Current 5 Years
Volunteers - Former On-going
Workers' Comp. Injury Report- Current Employee/ Volunteer
Workers' Comp. Injury Report- Former Employee/ Volunteer > Years
HazMat Exposure Reports o
] ) Indefinite
DMV Pull Notices - Current Employees/Volunteers DMV Pull Notices - Former o i
n-goin
Employees/Volunteers going
. 2 Years
HIPPA related Training for all members 6 Years
804.6 RECORD, PAPER OR DOCUMENT
CFIRS - Loss exceeds $50,000 Indefinite
CFIRS - Loss less than $50,000 7 Years
Medical Aid Response 3 Years

MEPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 95 of 128




Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.

Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Record Retention

Record
Retentio
n-1

Wild land Fire
All other Response Reports

804.7 DISTRICT EQUIPMENT
Maintenance Logs of Active Equipment
Maintenance Logs of In-Active Equipment

Accident/Damage Reports

804.8 ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS
General Correspondence Received

General Correspondence Sent

Attorney-Client Correspondence Received/Sent
Minutes of Regular and Special Board Meetings
Board Resolutions

Formation of the District

Station Log Books

Chief's Monthly Report to Board

Mutual Aid and Service Agreements - Active
Mutual Aid and Service Agreements - Inactive

804.9 FISCAL RECORDS
Adopted Annual Budget

Annual Independent Audit Report
Petty Cash Check Register

Petty Cash Bank Statements

Purchase Orders/Contracts
Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection
District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 96 of 128

3 Years
2 Years

On-going
2 Years
2 Years

2 Years
3 Years
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
3 Years
2 Years
On-going
2 Years

Indefinite
Indefinite
3 Years
3 Years
2 Years

Record Retention - 2




MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 914 Automated External Defibrillators
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:
This is a New Policy for Mosquito.

Several changes were made to this policy by the Lexipol Company. What was in Lexipol previously is
in RED. In BLUE is the language recommended by Lexipol.

Recommendations:
1. Approve this new policy as updated by Lexipol.
2. Publish the Policy so users are aware and can sign off that they have seen the Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 97 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Automated External Defibrillators

914.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

Fhe- The purpose of this policy is to establish the requirements for maintaining status as an
approved Public Safety AED Service Provider through the county Emergency Medical Services
(EMS) agency (22 CCR 100021 100027.05).

914.1.1 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

Automated External Defibrillator (AED) - An external defibrillator capable of cardiac rhythm
analysis that will charge and deliver a shock either automatically or by user interaction after
electronically detecting and assessing ventricular fibrillation or rapid ventricular tachycardia (22
CCR 1666605 100025.01).

CPR - Establishing and maintaining an open airway, ensuring adequate respiration and ensuring
adequate circulation either spontaneously or by means of closed chest cardiac compression, in
accordance with standards promulgated by the current American Heart Association Guidelines
for Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and Emergency Cardiovascular Care (22 CCR 100007
100025.02).

Public Safety AED Service Provider - An agency or organization that is responsible for, and is
approved to operate, an AED (22 CCR 1660606 100025.07).

914.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to maintain an authorized Public Safety AED
Service Provider status through the county EMS agency and to provide EMS-approved training
(see the Automated External Defibrillator Training Policy) to all AED-authorized members, thereby
enabling them to provide AED services to the public when necessary.

914.3 GUIDELINES

The EMS supervisor shall be responsible for ensuring the District maintains the necessary EMS
agency approval to operate as an AED Service Provider and shall work with the Training Officer
to ensure all AED-authorized members have completed the required training.

To obtain AED Service Provider approval from the EMS agency, the District shall provide the
following to its members (22 CCR 100021 100027.05):

. Orientation to the AED for all AED-authorized members
. Instruction in the proper maintenance of AED equipment

. Initial training and continued competency training for all AED-authorized members

B R B . " DRAFTH Automated ExtenalDefiaors -



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26" 2025

Title: Policy 1040 Family Medical Leave
Author: William Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Language updates made by Lexipol on most pages, with Government Code updates on page 5.
It should also be noted the requirement to post a notice explaining the FMLA’s provisions and
procedures is prominently posted in conspicuous places in the District where it can be readily seen by
all employees and applicants for employment. Electronic posting is sufficient as long as the other
posting requirements have been met as provided by 29 CFR 825.300 (29 CFR 825.300).

Recommendations:
1. Approve the policy as modified.
2. Re-publish the Policy so users are aware of the changes and can sign off that they have seen the
Changes.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 99 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

1040.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide general guidance for managing unpaid leave for eligible
employees for qualified medical and family reasons, including (29 USC § 2612; Government Code
§ 12945.1; Government Code § 12945.2): —

o The birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child.
. To care for an immediate family member with a serious health condition.

. When an employee is unable to work because of histher- their own serious health
condition.

o To care for a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin service member of the
United States Armed Forces who has a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of
duty. Under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), this includes care for a domestic
partner.

. Under CFRA, leave due to a qualifying exigency (as defined in Unemployment
Insurance Code § 3302.2) related to the covered active duty or call to active duty of
an employee's spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent in the Armed Forces of the
United States.

This policy does not address all possible situations and circumstances that may arise when
an employee requests leave for family or medical reasons. As these leave situations arise,
supervisors should consult with the Administration or legal counsel to obtain specific guidance
regarding leave rights and obligations.

Nothing in this policy supersedes any provision of any collective bargaining agreement, civil
service or other local rule, or any law that provides greater family or medical leave rights.

1040.1.1 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

CFRA - California Family Rights Act (Government Code 8§ 12945.1; Government Code § 12945.2).

Child - A child under the age of 18 years of age, or 18 years of age or older who is incapable of
self-care because of a mental or physical disability (29 USC § 2611; 29 CFR 825.102; 29 CFR
825.122). An employee's child is one for whom the employee has actual day-to-day responsibility
for care and includes a biological, adopted, or foster child; stepchild; or a child for whom the
employee is standing in loco parentis (in place of a parent). Under CFRA, a child includes a legal
ward and child of a domestic partner (Government Code § 12945.2).

FMLA - The federal Family and Medical Leave Act (29 USC § 2601 et seq.).

Qualified health care professional - A physician, surgeon, doctor of osteopathy, podiatrist,
dentist, psychologist, optometrist, nurse practitioner, nurse midwife, clinical social worker, or
physician assistant duly licensed and authorized to practice medicine; chiropractors for some

MK TP AR A M e o isier DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 1



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

purposes; any health care provider from whom the district benefits plan will accept certification of
the existence of a serious health condition to substantiate a claim for benefits (29 CFR 825.125).

Spouse - The person with whom an employee has entered into a marriage as defined or
recognized by the location in which the marriage was entered into (29 USC § 2611; 29 CFR
825.102; 29 CFR 825.122).

Family member(under CFRA) - A child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or
domestic partner as defined in Family Code 8§ 297, or a designated person as defined by
Government Code § 12945.2.

Family member(under FMLA) - A spouse, child, or parent as defined by 29 CFR 825.122.

1040.2 POLICY

It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection District to manage unpaid leave for eligible
employees for qualified medical and family reasons in compliance with federal and state law and
any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

1040.3 ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES

Employees are eligible for FMLA/CFRA after working for the Mosquito Fire Protection District for
at least one year and completing 1,250 hours over the 12 months prior to the commencement of
the leave (29 USC § 2611; 29 CFR 825.110; Government Code § 12945.2).

For leave under FMLA, employees may not be eligible for leave if there are less than 50 other
employees within 75 miles of the employee’s work site (29 USC § 2611; 29 CFR 825.110).

1040.4 TYPE AND DURATION OF LEAVE

Generally, eligible employees are entitled under FMLA/CFRA to 12 work weeks of unpaid leave
during a 12-month period (29 USC § 2612; 29 CFR 825.100). Up to 26 weeks of unpaid
leave during a single 12-month period may be available to care for certain injured military
service members. The 12-month period is measured backward from the date leave is taken and
continuously with each additional leave day taken.

1040.4.1 SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITIONS

Eligible employees may take up to 12 weeks of leave to care for a family member with a serious
health condition or when the employee is unable to work because of histher- their own serious
health condition (29 USC § 2612(a)(1); 29 CFR 825.200; Government Code § 12945.2).

Under FMLA, if both spouses are employed by the Mosquito Fire Protection District, the combined
number of work weeks to care for a sick parent is limited to 12 work weeks during any 12-month
period (29 USC § 2612(f); 29 CFR 825.201).

Generally, a serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental
condition that involves (29 USC 8§ 2611; 29 CFR 825.113):

MRS TP AR A M R e o isier DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 2



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

. An overnight stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility (29 CFR
825.114).

. Continuing treatment by a qualified health care professional due to a serious health
condition of more than three full consecutive calendar days (29 CFR 825.115(a)).

. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy complications or prenatal care (29 CFR
825.115(b)).

. A chronic condition which requires treatment (29 CFR 825.115(c)).

. A permanent condition for which treatment may not be effective (such as Alzheimer’'s
Alzheimer's or the terminal stages of a disease) (29 CFR 825.115(d)).

. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments, including any recovery period,
either for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition that
would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar
days without medical intervention or treatment (such as cancer chemotherapy or
physical therapy for arthritis) (29 CFR 825.115(e)).

1040.4.2 BIRTH OR PLACEMENT OF A CHILD

Eligible employees may take up to 12 weeks of leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care
placement of a child of the employee (29 USC § 2612; 29 CFR 825.200; Government Code 8
12945.2). The leave must be concluded within one year of the birth or placement of the child (29
CFR 825.120; 29 CFR 825.121).

Under FMLA, if both parents are employed by the Mosquito Fire Protection District, the combined
number of work weeks of leave is limited to 12 work weeks during any 12-month period (29 USC
8§ 2612(f); 29 CFR 825.120; 29 CFR 825.121).

1040.4.3 MILITARY EXIGENCY LEAVE

Eligible employees may take service member leave of up to 12 weeks for qualifying exigencies
occurring because a spouse, child, or parent is on covered active duty or has been notified of an
impending order to active duty (29 USC § 2612(a)(1)(E); 29 CFR 825.200). This type of leave
is available to a family member of a person in the National Guard, Reserves, or members of
the regular Armed Forces deployed to a foreign country. Qualifying exigencies include (29 CFR
825.126):

. Addressing issues that arise from a short notice (seven or less days) deployment.
. Attending military events related to the active duty or call to duty.
. Attending family support or assistance programs.

. Making child care or educational arrangements or attending school activities arising
from active duty or a call to active duty.

. Making financial and legal arrangements.

. Spending time with a military member who is on short-term rest-and-recuperation
leave during a period of deployment.

MRS TP AR A MO S o isier DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 3



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

. Attending post-deployment activities.

. Addressing issues that arise from the death of a military member, such as making
funeral arrangements.

. Caring for a military employee’s parent who is incapable of self-care, such as providing
care on an immediate need basis or arranging for alternative care.

1040.4.4 MILITARY CAREGIVER LEAVE

Eligible employees may take up to 26 weeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for a
spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin who has incurred an injury or illness in the line of
duty while on active duty in the Armed Forces, provided that such injury or illness may render the
family member medically unfit to perform work (29 USC § 2612; 29 CFR 825.200).

Military caregiver leave is also available to family members of covered veterans who were
members of the Armed Forces, including the National Guard or Reserves, at any point in the
five years preceding the date on which the covered veteran undergoes medical treatment,
recuperation, or therapy (29 USC 8§ 2612; 29 CFR 825.127).

During the single 12-month period, employees are entitled to no more than a combined total of
26 weeks of FMLA leave. In any case in which both spouses are employed by the Mosquito Fire
Protection District, the combined number of work weeks of leave is limited to 26 during any 12-
month period (29 USC § 2612(f); 29 CFR 825.127).

Service member FMLA leave runs concurrent with other leave entitlements provided under federal,
state, and local law. Where FMLA leave qualifies as both military caregiver leave and care for a
family member with a serious health condition, the leave will be designated as military caregiver
leave first.

1040.4.5 FAMILY MILITARY LEAVE

An employee who is a spouse or registered domestic partner of a member of the military who is
deployed to designated combat zones is entitled to take up to 10 days unpaid leave (Military and
Veterans Code § 395.10).

1040.4.6 INTERMITTENT LEAVE

An employee may take leave for the employee’s own serious health condition, for the serious
health condition of the employee’s spouse, child, or parent, or to care for a covered service
member with a serious injury or illness, intermittently or on a reduced schedule if medically
necessary, and if that medical need can best be accommodated by an intermittent schedule as
defined in federal law (29 USC 8§ 2612(b); 29 CFR 825.202; 29 CFR 825.124).

Leave due to a military exigency may be taken on an intermittent or reduced-leave schedule (29
CFR 825.202).

Intermittent leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child is only available if
granted at the discretion of the Fire Chief, unless the employee has a serious health condition in

MRS TP AR A MO e o isier  DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 4



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

connection with the birth or if the newborn child has a serious health condition (29 CFR 825.120;
29 CFR 825.121).

Intermittent leave for any employee shall be tracked and calculated.

1040.4.7 PREGNANCY DISABILITY LEAVE

FMLA is separate and distinct from disability leave for pregnant employees. Pregnant employees
may be entitled to a disability leave as provided in the Pregnhancy Disability Leave Policy in addition
to any FMLA/CFRA leave.

1040.4.8 LEAVE FOR VICTIMS OF CRIME OR ABUSE

Eligible employees may take leave if the employee is the victim of a crime, abuse, or sexual assault
and needs leave for any of the purposes specified in Labor- Government Code § 230 12945.1
8. Reasonable advance notice of leave is required except in cases where notice is not feasible.
Information relating to this leave shall be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law (Labor
Government Code § 230 12945.1 8).

The District shall provide written notice of the rights—specified-in-this-section-to-newly -hired

employees-and-upon-request(Labor-Code-§230.1) employee rights for this leave as provided in
Government Code § 12945.8.

1040.5 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS WHILE ON LEAVE

While on leave, employees will continue to be covered by any group health insurance to the same
extent that coverage is provided while the employee is on the job (29 USC § 2614(c); 29 CFR
825.209). However, employees will not continue to be covered under non-health benefit plans.

Employees are responsible for any health plan employee contributions while on leave (29 CFR
825.210). Employee contribution rates are subject to any change in rates that occurs while the
employee is on leave. If an employee fails to return to work after his/her- their leave entitlement
has been exhausted or expires, the District may recover its share of health plan premiums for the
entire leave period unless the employee does not return because of the continuation, recurrence,
or onset of a serious health condition of the employee or histher- their family member that would
entitle the employee to leave, or because of circumstances beyond the employee’s- employee's
control (29 CFR 825.213). The District may recover premiums through deduction from any sums
(e.g., unpaid wages, vacation pay).

Employees may not earn additional time off while on unpaid leave.

1040.6 SUBSTITUTION OF PAID ACCRUED LEAVES

Subject to applicable collective bargaining agreements and civil service rules, employees are
required to exhaust all applicable paid leave before taking unpaid leave. Paid accrued leave
includes vacation leave, sick leave, personal leave, and compensatory time earned in lieu of
overtime, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, during FMLA and/or CFRA leave. Employees
may not use paid accrued leave to extend FMLA/CFRA leave beyond 12 work weeks per year.

DR ST AR A M S o isrier DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 5



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

1040.6.1 USE OF SICK LEAVE
Employees are required to first exhaust paid sick leave concurrently with FMLA/CFRA leave if the

leave is for the employee’s own serious health condition.

Employees may choose to use paid sick leave concurrently with leave under this policy (Labor
Code § 233):

. To care for a family member (as defined by Labor Code § 245.5) with a serious health
condition.

1040.7 USE OF FMLA/CFRA LEAVE

If an employee takes a leave of absence for any reason that is FMLA/CFRA-qualifying, the District
may designate that non-FMLA/CFRA leave as running concurrently with the employee’s 12-
week FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement. The only exception is for Firefighters who are on workers’
compensation leave pursuant to Labor Code § 4850.

1040.8 PROCEDURES
The following procedures will apply for all employees requesting leave under FMLA/CFRA:

(@) When a leave is requested for a medical or other FMLA/CFRA-related treatment
appointment, the employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule the
appointment at a time that minimizes disruption to the district's operations (29 USC
§ 2612; 29 CFR 825.302).

(b)  An employee who wishes to take FMLA/CFRA must provide hisfher- their supervisor
with 30 days' advance notice when the leave is foreseeable or as soon as practicable
if the need for leave is not foreseeable (29 USC § 2612; 29 CFR 825.302; 29 CFR
825.303).

(c) Atthe time of the request, the employee must complete a FMLA/CFRA request form.

Requests for medical leave shall be accompanied by a qualified health care professional
statement, including the date on which the serious health condition began and the estimated date
of return to work (29 USC § 2613; 29 CFR 825.302).

Once the leave is requested or designated by the District, the supervisor should forward the
request and any medical certifications to the Administration and ensure the employee is provided
the necessary forms and FMLA/CFRA information within five days (29 CFR 825.300).

Employees are required to provide medical certification of a qualified health care professional or
military documentation, if requested (29 CFR 825.305; 29 CFR 825.308; 29 CFR 825.309; 29
CFR 825.310).

Employees shall be required to periodically report on their status and intent to return to work (29
USC § 2614; 29 CFR 825.311). This may assist in avoiding a delay in reinstatement when the
employee is ready to return to work.

Employees returning from a medical leave from the employee's own serious health condition
will be required to present medical verification from a qualified health care professional of the

MRS TP A A MO e o isier  DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 6



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Family and Medical Leave

employee’s- employee's ability to return to work and a list of any restrictions that need to be
accommodated (29 USC § 2614; 29 CFR 825.100; 29 CFR 825.312).

1040.9 REINSTATEMENT FOLLOWING LEAVE

Generally, employees returning from FMLA/CFRA within the qualified period will be restored to
their original job or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay and benefits (but not seniority), unless
the employee would not otherwise have been employed at the time reinstatement is requested
(e.g., in the case of a layoff) (29 USC § 2614; 29 CFR 825.214; 29 CFR 825.216).

If the same position is no longer available, such as in a layoff, the employee will be entitled to
a position that is comparable in pay, job content, and promotional opportunities and geographic
location, if such a comparable position exists.

If upon return from leave an employee is unable to perform the essential functions of the job
because of a physical or mental disability, the supervisor should work with the Administration
or legal counsel to engage in an interactive process with the employee to identify a potential
reasonable accommodation.

After exhausting paid FMLA/CFRA leave, non-paid leave will continue until the conclusion of the
protected 12- or 26-week time limit. Following the protected leave, the Fire Chief, in consultation
with the legal counsel or the Administration, will determine whether non-FMLA/CFRA leave should

apply.

1040.10 RESPONSIBILITY

Supervisors should work with the Administration or legal counsel regarding questions relating
to leave or reinstatement from leave under this policy. The Administration should advise the
supervisor and inform members of their rights and responsibilities.

1040.11 RECORDS
The District will maintain leave-related records as required by 29 CFR 825.500 for at least three
years and in compliance with the district’s established records retention schedule.

Records and documents related to doctor certifications and other medical information created
for purposes of complying with FMLA/CFRA and this policy shall be maintained as confidential
medical records in separate files from employee personnel files.

1040.12 NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES

The Fire Chief should ensure that a notice explaining the FMLA’s provisions and procedures
is prominently posted in conspicuous places in the District where it can be readily seen by all
employees and applicants for employment. Electronic posting is sufficient as long as the other
posting requirements have been met as provided by 29 CFR 825.300 (29 CFR 825.300).

MRS TP AR A MO i o isrier DRAFT™ Family and Medical Leave - 7



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26,2025

Title: Policy 1012 updates
Author: W. Buhnerkempe
Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

Policy 1012 Discriminatory Harassment, needs modification, to delete the repeated phrase, “the
Fire Chief” in three places.

Recommendations:
1. Approved the modified Policy 1012 and republish it.
2. Update the Reviewed/Modified Table (Separate Issue Paper) with todays date.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 107 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1012.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to prevent district members from being subjected to discriminatory
harassment, including sexual harassment and retaliation (Government Code § 12940(k); 2 CCR
11023). Nothing in this policy is intended to create a legal or employment right or duty that is not
created by law.

1012.2 POLICY

The Mosquito Fire Protection District is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to
creating and maintaining a work environment that is free of all forms of discriminatory harassment,
including sexual harassment and retaliation. The District will not tolerate discrimination against a
member in hiring, promotion, discharge, compensation, fringe benefits, and other privileges of
employment. The District will take preventive and corrective action to address any behavior that
violates this policy or the rights and privileges it is designed to protect.

The nondiscrimination policies of the District may be more comprehensive than state or federal
law. Conduct that violates this policy may not violate state or federal law but still could subject a
member to discipline.

1012.3 DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

1012.3.1 DISCRIMINATION

The District prohibits all forms of discrimination, including any employment-related action by a
member that adversely affects an applicant or member and is based on actual or perceived race,
ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age,
disability, pregnancy, genetic information, veteran status, marital status, and any other
classification or status protected by law.

Discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment, is verbal or physical conduct that
demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual based upon that individual’'s protected
class. It has the effect of interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating a hostile or
abusive work environment.

Conduct that may, under certain circumstances, constitute discriminatory harassment can include
making derogatory comments; making crude and offensive statements or remarks; making slurs
or off-color jokes; stereotyping; engaging in threatening acts; making indecent gestures, pictures,
cartoons, posters, or material; making inappropriate physical contact; or using written material or
district equipment and/or systems to transmit or receive offensive material, statements, or
pictures. Such conduct is contrary to district policy and to a work environment that is free of
discrimination. 1012.3.2 RETALIATION

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Discriminatory Harassment - 1
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 108 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Retaliation is treating a person differently or engaging in acts of reprisal or intimidation against the
person because the person has engaged in protected activity, filed a charge of discrimination,
participated in an investigation, or opposed a discriminatory practice. Retaliation will not be
tolerated.

1012.3.3 SEXUAL HARASSMENT
The District prohibits all forms of discrimination and discriminatory harassment, including sexual
harassment. It is unlawful to harass an applicant or a member because of that person’s sex.

Sexual harassment includes but is not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

(@) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition
of employment, position, or compensation.

(b) Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct is used as the basis for any employment
decisions affecting the member.

(c) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a member’s
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.

1012.3.4 ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
Discrimination and discriminatory harassment do not include actions that are in accordance with
established rules, principles, or standards, including:

(@) Acts or omission of acts based solely upon bona fide occupational qualifications under
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the California Civil Rights
Department guidelines.

(b) Bona fide requests or demands by a supervisor that the member improve the
member's work quality or output, that the member report to the job site on time, that
the member comply with District or district rules or regulations, or any other
appropriate work-related communication between supervisor and member.

1012.4 RESPONSIBILITIES

This policy applies to all district members who shall follow the intent of these guidelines in a
manner that reflects district policy, professional standards, and the best interest of the Mosquito
Fire Protection District and its mission.

Members are encouraged to promptly report any discriminatory, retaliatory, or harassing conduct
or known violations of this policy to a supervisor. Any member who is not comfortable with
reporting violations of this policy to the member's immediate supervisor may bypass the chain of
command and make the report to a higher-ranking supervisor or manager. Complaints may also
be filed with the Fire Chief, the-Fire-Chief; or the Board of Directors.

Any member who believes, in good faith, that the member has been discriminated against,
harassed, or subjected to retaliation, or who has observed harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation, is encouraged to promptly report such conduct in accordance with the procedures set
forth in this policy.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Discriminatory Harassment - 2
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 109 of 128

—| Commented [WB1]: The second “the Fire Chief”
should be removed




Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Supervisors and managers receiving information regarding alleged violations of this policy shall
determine if there is any basis for the allegation and shall proceed with a resolution as stated
below.

1012.4.1 QUESTIONS OR CLARIFICATION
Members with questions regarding what constitutes discrimination, sexual harassment, or

retaliation are encouraged to contact a supervisor, a manager, the Fire Chief, khe—l;uce—emef the

Board of Directors, or the California Civil Rights Department for further information, direction, or
clarification (Government Code § 12950).

1012.4.2 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
The responsibilities of supervisors and managers shall include but are not limited to:

(@) Continually monitoring the work environment and striving to ensure that it is free from
all types of unlawful discrimination, including harassment or retaliation.

(b) Taking prompt, appropriate action within their work units to avoid and minimize the
incidence of any form of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.

(c) Ensuring that their subordinates understand their responsibilities under this policy.

(d) Ensuring that members who make complaints or who oppose any unlawful
employment practices are protected from retaliation and that such matters are kept
confidential to the extent possible.

(e) Making a timely determination regarding the substance of any allegation based upon
all available facts.

(f)  Notifying the Fire Chief and the Board President in writing of the circumstances
surrounding any reported allegations or observed acts of discrimination, harassment,
or retaliation no later than the next business day.

1012.4.3 SUPERVISOR’S ROLE
Supervisors and managers shall be aware of the following:

(@) Behavior of supervisors and managers should represent the values of the District and
professional standards.

(b) False or mistaken accusations of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation can have
negative effects on the careers of innocent members.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent supervisors or managers from discharging
supervisory or management responsibilities, such as determining duty assignments, evaluating
or counseling members, or issuing discipline, in a manner that is consistent with established
procedures.

1012.5 INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

Various methods of resolution exist. During the pendency of any such investigation, the supervisor
of the involved member should take prompt and reasonable steps to mitigate or eliminate any
continuing abusive or hostile work environment. It is the policy of the Mosquito Fire Protection

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Discriminatory Harassment - 3
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 110 of 128

—| Commented [WB2]: The second “the Fire Chief”
should be removed.




Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment
District that all complaints of discrimination, retaliation, or harassment shall be fully documented,
and promptly and thoroughly investigated.

1012.5.1 SUPERVISOR RESOLUTION

Members who believe they are experiencing discrimination, harassment, or retaliation should be
encouraged to inform the individual that the behavior is unwelcome, offensive, unprofessional, or
inappropriate. However, if the member feels uncomfortable or threatened or has difficulty
expressing the member's concern, or if this does not resolve the concern, assistance should be
sought from a supervisor or manager who is a rank higher than the alleged transgressor.

1012.5.2 FORMAL INVESTIGATION
If the complaint cannot be satisfactorily resolved through the supervisory resolution process, a
formal investigation will be conducted.

The person assigned to investigate the complaint will have full authority to investigate all aspects
of the complaint. Investigative authority includes access to records and the cooperation of any
members involved. No influence will be used to suppress any complaint and no member will be
subject to retaliation or reprisal for filing a complaint, encouraging others to file a complaint, or for
offering testimony or evidence in an investigation.

Formal investigation of the complaint will be confidential to the extent possible and will include but
is not limited to details of the specific incident, frequency and dates of occurrences, and names
of any witnesses. Witnesses will be advised regarding the prohibition against retaliation, and that
a disciplinary process, up to and including termination, may result if retaliation occurs.

Members who believe they have been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against
because of their protected status are encouraged to follow the chain of command but may also
file a complaint directly with the Fire Chief, the Fire Chief, or the Board of Directors.

1012.5.3 ALTERNATIVE COMPLAINT PROCESS

No provision of this policy shall be construed to prevent any member from seeking legal redress
outside the District. Members who believe that they have been harassed, discriminated against,
or retaliated against are entitled to bring complaints of employment discrimination to federal, state,
and/or local agencies responsible for investigating such allegations. Specific time limitations apply
to the filing of such charges. Members are advised that proceeding with complaints under the
provisions of this policy does not in any way affect those filing requirements.

1012.6 DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLAINTS
All complaints or allegations shall be thoroughly documented on the appropriate forms and in a
manner designated by the Fire Chief. The outcome of all reports shall be:

(@) Approved by the Fire Chief, the Board of Directors, or the Fire Chief, depending on

the ranks of the involved parties.
(b) Maintained in accordance with the established records retention schedule.
1012.6.1 NOTIFICATION OF DISPOSITION

The complainant and/or victim will be notified in writing of the disposition of the investigation and
the actions taken to remedy or address the circumstances giving rise to the complaint.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Discriminatory Harassment - 4
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 111 of 128

—| Commented [WB3]: The first “the Fire Chief’ should
be removed.




Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

1012.7 TRAINING

All new members shall be provided with a copy of this policy as part of their orientation. The policy
shall be reviewed with each new member. The member shall certify by signing the prescribed
form that the member has been advised of this policy, is aware of and understands its contents,
and agrees to abide by its provisions during the member's term with the District.

All members shall receive annual training on the requirements of this policy and shall certify by
signing the prescribed form that they have reviewed the policy, understand its contents, and agree
that they will continue to abide by its provisions.

1012.7.1 STATE-REQUIRED TRAINING

The Training Officer should ensure that employees receive the required state training and
education regarding sexual harassment, prevention of abusive conduct, and harassment based
on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation as follows (Government Code §
12950.1; 2 CCR 11024):

(@) Supervisory employees shall receive two hours of classroom or other effective
interactive training and education within six months of assuming a supervisory
position.

(b)  All other employees shall receive one hour of classroom or other effective interactive
training and education within six months of their employment or sooner for seasonal
or temporary employees as described in Government Code § 12950.1.

(c) All employees shall receive refresher training every two years thereafter.

If the required training is to be provided by the Civil Rights Department online training courses,
the Training Officer should ensure that employees are provided the website address for the
training course: https://calcivilrights.ca.gov (Government Code § 12950; 2 CCR 11023).

1012.7.2 TRAINING RECORDS

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all discriminatory harassment
training provided to members. Records shall be retained in accordance with established records
retention schedules and for a minimum of two years (2 CCR 11024).

1012.8 REQUIRED POSTERS

The District shall display the required poster regarding discrimination, harassment, and
transgender rights in a prominent and accessible location for members (Government Code §
12950).

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Discriminatory Harassment - 5
Published with permission by Mosquito Fire Protection District

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 112 of 128


https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/

MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26,2025

Title: Policy 1052 Job Description Captain
Author: W. Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:
Modifying Policy 1052 Job Description Captain, with minor grammar changes

Recommendations:
1. Approved the modified policy and republish.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 113 of 128



Policy

Mosquito Fire Protection District

105 2 Policy Manual

Job Description - Captain

1052.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
To establish the position of Captain and define the Board's performance expectations of the
person occupying that position.

1052.2 POLICY

The position of Captain is established by the Mosquito Fire Protection District (MFPD) Board of
Directors as an Hourly Position. The Captain shall operate under the general direction of the Fire
Chief. Although there are other duties as described below, the primary responsibility of the
position is to irsure ensure a continuing state of readiness of all responding fire apparatus and
equipment.

The Captain shall function as a staff member to the Chief by providing input regarding daily
operations, shift scheduling, evaluating and correcting safety violations, enforcing District policy
and procedures, assisting with the training and support of volunteers. The Captain is responsible
for the supervision of the on-duty engineer and firefighters.

1052.3 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

The Captain must meet the following requirements. The Probationary Period shall be one year.
Continuation in the position requires completion of below listed requirements and quarterly
satisfactory personnel evaluation.

(@) Be physically capable te of functioning as a firefighter.

(b) Possess a current certification to the level of an Emergency Medical Technician 1B or,
obtain within one year of appointment.

(c) Maintain a valid California Driver’s license with Firefighter endorsement.

(d) Possess a Firefighter 2 certification or equivalent.

(e) Qualified to operate all District apparatus.

()  Reside in the District or within 60 miles of the district.

(g) Held paid position of firefighter for 2 years or volunteer firefighter for 3 years.

(h) Complete all apparatus task books within one year after appointment.

1052.4 UNIVERSAL STANDARDS
The Board of Directors of the Mosquito Fire Protection District expects the Captain to adhere to
the following universal performance standards:

(&) Serve citizens of the District with courtesy and impatrtiality.
(b) Comply with Standard Operating Procedures, Board Policy and law.

(c) Decide issues without undue delay.

&(?éﬁ?ht Lexipal, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Job Description — Captain - 1
b

e<d< I @mgsﬁgfbVqué g ré %ﬁotection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description — Captain

(d)

(e)
(f)
(9
(h)
(i)

()

Build and maintain productive relationships with the volunteers, the support group and
the Board of Directors.

Comply with and enforce safety rules.
Display vision and creativity when making recommendations to the Chief.
Assure efficiency and effectiveness in operations.

Maintain normal office hours at the Fire Station within the limitations imposed by other
duties and/or functions.

Maintain off-duty conduct in a manner that does not bring embarrassment, criticism or
other negative impacts upon the District or the Department.

Submit, when directed by the Chief to a standard D.O.T. drug test.

1052.5 SPECIFIC STANDARDS

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Respond immediately, when on duty, to all dispatched incidents. Perform in a
professional manner to bring the incident to its final conclusion.

Inspect, maintain, and repair as necessary all fire apparatus and related equipment to
assure ensure that it is safe, functioning properly and ready to respond.

Possess the following certifications:

(@) A NFPA Pump Testing Certification (desirable)

(b) CFSM Driver/Operator Certification.

(c) Red Card Certification.

(d) Command 1A & 1B Certification or equivalent.

(e) 1CS-100, ICS-200, ICS-300 and ICS-700 Classes (f) Maintain EMT 1B
(upon completion).

(g) Held position of Engineer for 1 year — Requires verification of prior employment
and experience

(h) Basic Wildland and Engine Boss Certifications

Inspect, maintain, and repair as necessary the fire station itself and other related
MFPD assets.

Maintain driver training program that assures safe, legal and proper use of all fire
apparatus.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Job Description — Captain - 2
Mﬁ%ﬁeﬁ< |§r{%§/ gsﬁ%ﬁb?ﬂﬂ)%qm Eﬁé %§otection District



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Job Description — Captain

(f)  Effectively represent the Department with state and county agencies, other fire
departments, and especially the members of the community that this department
serves.

() Develop and maintain a high morale and efficiency among all volunteer fire fighters
and support group members.

(h)  Maintain inventory control on equipment and parts.
(i)  Organize and fill monthly shift schedule for fire station staffing.
()  Perform other related duties as needed or directed by the Chief.

(k)  Ability to train or demonstrate to staff, volunteers, and community the proper safety
and operations of all department emergency response equipment.

W&?ht Lexipal, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Job Description — Captain - 3
b

e<d< I @m&ﬁ%ﬁ&m&dt@ g ré %§otection District



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date: May 22, 2025
Submitted by: William Buhnerkempe
Title: MFPD Policies 1048 Compensation and Benefits

Information Only, or Action Item:  Action Item.

Summary:

Last month we inserted the Mid Level Officer (Part-Time), and changed the Captain slot on the
Classification and Wage Table to Mid-Level Officer. This month we are adding 3 words to 1048.10
Fire Captain (Staff) to say we are paying the Captain as a Mid Level Officer. | put the changes in
Blue, and left the Green from last month so it is easier to tell what is being changed.

Changes listed in Policy are:
1048.10 Fire Captain (Staff)
Position — This is a Mid Level Officer, full-time, salaried, and fully benefited position.

Recommendations

1. Approve the change to the attached Policy to say the Fire Captain (Staff) is a Mid-Level
Officer.

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 117 of 128



Policy

1048

Compensation and Benefits
PDF

1048.1 Purpose

To define employee compensation and benefits for positions of the Mosquito Fire
Protection District. ("MFPD" or "District")

1048.2 Policy

This policy supersedes any benefit or compensation policy, or practice previously adopted
by the Board. Al of the following benefits are included in the compensation for full-time,
salaried, fully benefited positions. Select benefits for all other positions are described
under the position description sections in this policy. Applicable benefits will begin on the
first full pay period of the budget year or the first full pay period following an employee's
hiring or promotion.

1048.3 Retirement Plan Contribution

Every month, the District will pay 0.75% of the employee's previous month's salary into an
approved retirement plan on behalf of the employee. The employee may take up to three (3)
months to identify said fund, after which, the benefit will be paused and ohly restarted after
said fund is identified.

1048.4 Medical Insurance Contribution

Every month, the District will pay the employee $750.00 to offset the cost of the empiloyee's
own health insurance and medical expenses. This contribution will be inlieu of the District
providing a health insurance benefit, and will be proportionally included in each payroll.

1048.5 Sick L.eave
1048.5.1 Sick Leave Accrual

Employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of 2.67 work hours for every pay period of
continuous employment until a maximum of 40 hours are acerued.

1048.5.2 Sick Leave Usage

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 118 of 128



Sick leave must only be used by the employee during times that their physical or mental
health is impacted by illness or injury. All approvals for sick leave are at the discretion of
the Chief or his/her designee.

A request to use sick leave must be made at least 12 hours before the start of an
employee's shift or when they are aware of a progressing medical condition. Emergency
sick leave may be granted with a sudden onset of injury or illness that does not allow the
employee to meet the 12 hour notification rule.

Sick Leave shall not be used in place of or to extend Vacation or Compensatory Time Off.

Should Sick Leave be needed for more than three (3) continuous work days, the employee
will furnish a statement from a health care provider supporting the need 1o be absent
and/or the ability to return to work.

1048.5.3 Sick Leave Accounting

District Administration shall accurately maintain a record of employee sick leave balances
to ensure that they do not exceed the maximum accrual or usage limits.

1048.6 Long Term Disability

If an employee cannot perform their duties because of incapacity due to an incident NOT
associated with District employment for a period exceeding all available paid leaves which
the employee has accrued, the District will continue to make normal contributions to the
medical and retirement benefits specified by this policy for one calendar month, following
the exhaustion of said paid leaves. After that month, the District is no longer bound to make
contributions to any employee benefits. The Employee's full compensation and benefits
will be reinstated upon their return to work.

1048.7 Holiday Leave

Employees shall receive one (1) day off from work with pay on each of the following eight
(8)"Holidays"; Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Thanksgiving Day,
President's Day, Memorial Day, the Friday preceding Easter and the Friday following
Thanksgiving.

If the holiday falls on the employee's scheduled day off, the employee shall be granted
Compensatory Time Off (CTO) or payment equivalent to one workday.

1048.8 Vacation Leave

1048.8.1 Vacation Leave Accrual

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 119 of 128



Year One - Probationary Employee - No vacation leave shall accrue during the
probationary period. However, at the completion of probation, the employee shall be
awarded vacation leave equivalent to 1.5 hours for each pay period worked.

Year Two through Year Four - After completing 26 pay periods of continuous employment,
the employee shall accrue vacation leave at the rate of 3.0 hours for each pay period
worked.

Year Five and Thereafter - After completing 130 pay periods of continuous employment,
the employee shall accrue vacation leave at the rate of 4.5 hours for each pay period
worked.

Maximum - The maximum accrual balance of vacation leave is 240 hours. Employees are
encouraged to use vacation leave in the year earned. At employment termination, accrued
vacation balances will be paid to the employee at their current, regular pay rate.

1048.8.2 Vacation Leave Usage

All requests to use vacation leave must be pre-approved by the Chief or his/her designee to
ensure reliable staffing and operations.

1048.8.3 Vacation Leave Accounting

District Administration shall accurately maintain a record of employee vacation leave
balances to ensure that they do not exceed the maximum accrual or usage limits.

1048.9 Overtime (OT) and Compensatory Time Off (CTO)

As is inherent when providing emergency services, additional work time may occasionally
be necessary to satisfy the staffing needed for emergency service calls and to ensure the
continued readiness of fire personnel, apparatus, and equipment.

1048.9.1 OT & CTO Accrual

Rate - Employees shall accrue OT and CTO leave at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) hours
for each full hour worked in excess of their normal duty hours,

Approval and Maximum - The Chief or his/her designee must pre-approve all non-
emergency OT and CTO accruals. The maximum accrual balance for CTO is 480 hours.

Off Duty Exception - In recognition of the Board's desire that trained, salaried staff
respond to emergency service calls whenever available, emergency OT or CTO leave is
granted without the condition of pre-approval.

1048.9.2 CTO Accounting

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 120 of 128



District Administration shall accurately maintain a record of employee CTO leave balances
to ensure that they do not exceed the maximum accrual or usage limits. Employees shall
ensure that their CTO leave balance does not exceed the specified maximum by
expeditiously using earned leaves throughout the year.

1048.9.3 CTO Usage

Allrequests to use CTO leave must be pre-approved by the Chief or his/her designee to
ensure reliable staffing and operations. The District may require an employee to use
accrued CTO leave at any time.

1048.9.4 CTO Payout

Each year, during the last pay period in June, all employees will be compensated for
unused CTO leave balance hours at their current regular pay rate and their CTO leave
balance will be reset to zero (0). At employment termination, accrued leave balances will
be paid to the employee at their regular pay rate.

1048.10 Fire Captain (Staff)
Position ~This is a Mid-Level Officer, full-time, salaried, and fully benefited position.

Salary - The annual salary is specified in the District's Classification and Wage Table
document.

Work Hours - Regular duty hours shall consist of eight (8) hours per day, five (8) days per
week. The Chief shall establish the duty schedule for this position.

Scheduled Training — When the employee attends an approved training session after
having worked a normal shift that day, they shall be granted OT or CTO leave for those
training hours.

1048.11 Firefighter, Engineer/ Equipment Operator (Staff)
Position — These are full-time, salaried, and fully benefited positions.

Salary - The annual salary is specified in the District's Classification and Wage Table
document.

Work Hours - Regular duty time shall consist of eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per
week. The Chief shall establish the duty schedule for this position.

Scheduled Training - When the employee attends an approved training session after
having worked a normat shift that day, he/she shall be granted OT or CTO leave for those
training hours,

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 121 of 128



1048.12 Firefighter, Engineer/Equipment Operator, Captain (Part-time)
Position - These are part-time positions and are not fully benefited.

Salary - These are hourly positions. Hourly rates for these positions are specified in the
District's Classification and Wage Table document.

Work Hours - The Chief shall establish the duty schedule for these positions.

Scheduled Training - When the employee attends an approved training session after
having worked a normal shift that day, they shall be granted OT leave for those training
hours.

Benefits -
- Overtime benefit 1048.9 applies to this position,

- Sick Leave benefit 1048.5 applies to this position.

1048.13 District Board Clerk (Part-time)
Position - This is a part-time position and is not fully benefited.
Work Hours — The Chief shall establish the duty schedule for this position.

Compensation —This is an hourly position.The hourly rate for this position is specified in
the District's Classification and Wage Table document.

Benefits -

- Overtime and Compensatory Time Off benefit 1048.9 applies to this position.
- Holiday Leave benefit 1048.7 applies to this position.

- Sick Leave benefit 1048.5 applies to this position.

1048.14 Administrative Assistant (Part-time)

Position - This is a part-time position and is not fully benefited.

Work Hours - The Chief shall establish the duty schedule for this position.

Compensation -This is an hourly position. The hourly rate for this position is specified in
the District's Classification and Wage Table document.

Benefits -

MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 122 of 128



MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 123 of 128



MOSQUITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
8801 Rock Creek Road
Placerville, CA 95667
(530) 626-9017

Agenda Item Issue Paper

Meeting Date:  June 26,2025

Title: Update of Tracking Sheet for Policies not needing changes.
Author: W. Buhnerkempe

Discussion Item [ or Action Item

Summary:

The update of the tracking sheet to reflect the REVIEW of the thirteen (13) Policies not
noticed as being in any need of changes.

Recommendations:
1. Update the Reviewed/Modified Table with today’s date.

lofl
MFPD <<06/26/2025>> Page 124 of 128



Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

POLICY REVIEW AND REVISION TRACKING

Policy Title Revision Date Reviewed Date

Chapter 1 Fire Service Role and Authority

100 Fire Service Authority 3/28/24 3/28/24
101 Chief Executive Officer |3/28/24 3/28/24
102 Oath of Office 3/28/24 3/28/24
103 Policy Manual 1722 06/26/2025 6/23/22 6/26/2025

Chapter 2 Organization and Administration

204 California Fair Political 6/23/22 6/23/22 6/26/20257
Practices Commission
Fillings

211 Solicitation of Funds 6/23/22 6/23/22 6/26/2025

215214 Purchasing and 6/23/22 6/23/22
Procurement

Chapter 3 General Operations

319 Abandoned Infants/ 10/26/23 10/26/23
Children

323 Child Abuse Reporting 10/26/23 10/26/23

326 Adult Abuse 1/25/24 1/25/24

Chapter 4 Fire Prevention

Chapter 5 Emergency Medical Services

Chapter 6 Training

600 Fire Equipment Driver/ |10/26/23 10/26/23
Operator Training

W&?ht Lexipal, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved. Policy Review and Revision Tracking - 1
b

e<d< I Q/I%Qgsq’gfbg,ﬂﬂ)%q“d?ﬁg g ré %?otection District



601

Automated External
Defibrillator Training

12/28/23-6/26/2025

12/28/236/26/2025

602

Bloodborne Pathogen
Training

9/28/23

9/28/23

603

CPR and First Aid
Training

12/28/23

12/28/23

609

Health Insurance
Portability and
Accountability Act
(HIPAA)

5222 6/26/2025

5RR22 6/26/2025

Mosquito Fire Protection District

Policy Manual

Policy Review and Revision Tracking

District Property

612 Respiratory Protection 9/28/23 9/28/23
Training

614 Training Records 7128/22 #2822 6/26/2025

Chapter 7 Equipment and Technology

700 Use of District Owned 28122 6/26/2025 7/28/22 6/26/2025
and Personal Property

709 Photography and #25/22 6/26/2025 #2522 6/26/2025
Electronic Imaging

710 Non Official Use of H28/22 6/26/2025 7/28/22 6/26/2025

Chapter 8 Records Management

803 Patient Medical Record |5/2/22 6/26/2025 512122 6/26/2025
Security and Privacy
804 Record Retention 6/23/22 6/26/2025 6/23/22 6/26/2025

Chapter 9 Safety

902

Cal/OSHA Notification of
Injury, lliness or Death

1/25/24

1/25/24

E/l(i__p ht LeXI ol, LLC 2025,

@r%ggs?on b qu

05/24, All Ri Ets Reserved.

otection District

Policy Review and Revision Tracking - 2




914 Automated External 6/26/2025 6/26/2025
Defibrillators

Chapter 10 Personnel

1012 Discriminatory H1AA722 6/26/2025 927122 6/26/2025
Harassment

1013 Conduct and Behavior 6/23/22 62322 6/26/2025

1020 Grievance Procedure 3/28/24 3/28/24

1027 Drug and Alcohol Free 10/27/22 10127122 6/26/2025
Workplace

1029 Uniform Regulations 3/28/24 3/28/24

1040 Family and Medical 11/a7122 6/26/2025 11/27122 6/26/2025
Leave

1043 Driver's License 12/28/23 12/28/23
Requirements

1045 Member Speech, 3/28/24 3/28/24
Expression and Social
Networking

1047 Sick Leave 1/25/24 1/25/24

1048 Compensation and 5/23/25 6/26/2025 5123125 6/26/2025
Benefits

1049 Disciplinary Procedures - | 3/28/24 3/28/24
Employee

Mosquito Fire Protection District
Policy Manual

Policy Review and Revision Tracking

1050 Disciplinary Procedures - |3/28/24 3/28/24
Volunteer

1051 Attendance and 10/27/22 10,2722 6/26/2025
Reporting lliness or
Injury

1052 Job Description - 9/27/22 6/26/2025 9/27/22 6/26/2025
Captain

CO ht Lexipol, LLC 2028/05/24, Al R hts Reserved. Policy Review and Revision Tracking - 3

MIP @r%ggs?on b ﬂﬂ)%ql?rt é otection District




1053 Job Description - 9/27/22 9/27/22
Firefighter Engineer
1054 Job Description - Board |[9/27/22 9R722 6/26/2025
Clerk and Administrative
Assistant
1055 Job Description Support [10/27/22 10/27/22
Services
Volunteer
Chapter 11 Facility
1108 Use of District Grounds |4/27/23 412723 6/26/2025
Chapter 12 Board Policies
1200 District Board Members |6/23/22 6/23/22
1201 District Board Meetings |3/28/24 3/28/24

Wﬁﬁ?ht Lexipal, LLC 2025/05/24, All Rights Reserved.
b

e<d< I @Wﬁgﬁbﬁmq@é g ré %ﬁsotection District

Policy Review and Revision Tracking - 4




	1 Agenda 2025 June 26 (2).pdf
	Board of Directors Meeting
	Thursday, June 26, 2025 – 6:00 PM
	Mosquito FPD Station 75
	8801 Rock Creek Road  Placerville, Ca. 96557
	AGENDA

	5.1 Expenses 2025 May 9
	Sheet1

	5.1.2 Expenses 2025 May 23
	Sheet1

	5.1.3 Expenses 2025 Jun 10
	Sheet1

	5.1.4 Expenses 2025 Jun 11
	Sheet1

	5.2 Minutes 2025 Mar 27 Special MTG
	Special Meeting
	Thursday March 27, 2024 – 6:15 PM
	Mosquito FPD Station 75
	8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557
	MINUTES

	5.3 Minutes 2025 Mar 27
	Board of Directors Meeting
	Thursday, March 27, 2025 – 7:00 PM
	Mosquito FPD Station 75
	8801 Rock Creek Road  Placerville, Ca. 96557
	MINUTES

	5.4 Minutes 2025 May 12 Special MTG
	Special Meeting
	Monday May 12, 2025 – 6 PM
	Mosquito FPD Station 75
	8801 Rock Creek Road Placerville, Ca. 96557
	MINUTES

	6.1 Prop 4 Res. 2505-01
	6.3 2025-2026 Preliminary Budget Issue Paper
	6.3.1 MFPD Prelim Budget FY 25-26 v19 Single Column
	Prelim25-26 V#19 June 20

	6.7 Issue Item MFPD Policy 1200 Update_06-16-2025
	6.7.1 Policy 1200 District_Board_Members_06-16-2025
	6.8 Issue Item MFPD Policy 1201 Update_06-16-2025
	6.8.1 Policy 1201 District_Board_Meetings_06-16-2025
	6.9 Issue Item Extrication Training Vehicle Removal_06-16-2025
	6.10 Issue Item MFPD Vehicle Disposition Committee_06-16-2025
	6.11 Fire Chief Hiring Committee
	6.12 Issue Paper Policies not needing changes (002)
	6.12.1 204 California_Fair_Political_Practices_Commission_Filings
	6.12.2 211 Solicitation_of_Funds
	6.12.3 614 Training_Records
	6.12.4 1013 Conduct_and_Behavior
	6.12.5 1027 Drug_and_Alcohol_Free_Workplace
	6.12.6 1051 Attendance_and_Reporting_Illness_or_Injury
	6.12.7 1054 Job_Description_-_Board_Clerk_and_Administrative_Assistant
	6.12.8 1108 Use_of_District_Facilities_and_Grounds
	6.13 Issue Paper Policy 103
	6.13.1 103 Policy_Manual
	Policy Manual
	103.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	103.2   POLICY
	103.4   FORMATTING CONVENTIONS FOR THE POLICY MANUAL
	103.5   DISTRIBUTION OF THE POLICY MANUAL
	103.6   POLICY MANUAL ACCEPTANCE
	103.7   REVISIONS TO POLICIES
	103.8   REVIEW AND MAINTENANCE OF POLICIES


	6.13.2 Issue Paper Policy 601
	6.13.3 601 Automated_External_Defibrillator_Training
	Automated External Defibrillator Training
	601.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	601.2   POLICY
	601.3   GUIDELINES
	601.4   TRAINING RECORDS


	6.13.4 Issue Paper Policy 609
	6.13.5 609 Health_Insurance_Portability_and_Accountability_Act__HIPAA__Training
	609.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	609.2   POLICY
	609.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
	609.4   TRAINING RECORDS

	6.13.6 Issue Paper Policy 700
	6.13.7 700 Use_of_District-Owned_and_Personal_Property
	Use of District-Owned and Personal Property
	700.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	700.2   POLICY
	700.3   PROCEDURE
	700.4   FILING CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY


	6.13.8 Issue Paper Policy 709
	6.13.9 709 Photography_And_Electronic_Imaging
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Photography And Electronic Imaging
	709.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	709.2   POLICY
	709.3   OWNERSHIP AND COMMERCIAL USE OF PHOTOGRAPHS AND ELECTRONIC IMAGES
	709.4   AUTHORIZED USE OF PHOTOGRAPHY AND ELECTRONIC IMAGING
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Photography And Electronic Imaging

	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Photography And Electronic Imaging
	709.5   PROHIBITED USE OF PHOTOGRAPHY OR ELECTRONIC IMAGING




	6.13.10 Issue Paper Policy 710
	6.13.11 710 Non-Official_Use_of_District_Property (002)
	710.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	710.2   POLICY

	6.13.12 Issue Paper Policy 803
	6.13.13 803 Patient_Medical_Record_Security_and_Privacy
	6.13.14 Issue Paper Policy 804
	6.13.14.1 804 Record_Retention
	Record Retention
	804.1   PURPOSE
	804.2   POLICY
	804.3   AUTHORITY
	804.4   DISPOSITION PROCEDURE
	804.5   PERSONNEL & TRAINING


	6.13.15 Issue Paper Policy 914
	6.13.16 914 Automated_External_Defibrillators
	6.13.20 Issue Paper Policy 1040
	6.13.21 1040 Family_and_Medical_Leave
	6.13.22 Issue Paper Policy 1012
	6.13.23 1012 - Discriminatory_Harassment
	Discriminatory Harassment
	1012.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	1012.2   POLICY
	1012.3   DEFINITIONS
	1012.4   RESPONSIBILITIES
	1012.5   INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS
	1012.6   DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLAINTS
	1012.7   TRAINING
	1012.8   REQUIRED POSTERS


	6.13.24 Issue Paper Policy 1052 Captain
	6.13.25 Job_Description_-_Captain
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Job Description - Captain
	1052.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	1052.2   POLICY
	1052.3   MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS
	1052.4   UNIVERSAL STANDARDS
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Job Description – Captain
	1052.5   SPECIFIC STANDARDS


	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Job Description – Captain



	6.13.25.1 MFPD Policy 1048 Issue Paper
	6.13.25.2 Scan Policy 1048
	6.13.26 Issue Paper Policies Tracking Sheet
	6.13.27 Policy_Review_and_Revision_Tracking
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Policy Review and Revision Tracking

	Mosquito Fire Protection District
	Policy Review and Revision Tracking





